
 

 

AUDIT 
 

2.00 pm MONDAY, 19TH APRIL, 2021 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  

  
This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet and it may be used for training 

purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being filmed 
and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 

member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 
725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 

found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers  

AGENDA 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Annual Risk Management Progress Report and 
Updated Corporate Risk Register 2020-21  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

3 - 64 

4. Audit Wales - 2021 Audit Plan - Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council  

 

 To receive report of Audit Wales 
 

65 - 80 

5. Internal Audit Charter 2021/22   

 To receive report of the Head of Regional Internal 
Audit Service 
 

81 - 104 

6. Information Reports   

 To receive copies of published Internal Audit 
reports for Members Information. 
 

105 - 106 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

 

 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors     C T Jones (Chair) 
                       D Roberts (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors:     J Amos, D Chaplin, J Davies, 

D Sammon, C Tovey and J Thomas 
 
Lay Member(s): R Williams 
 
Together with appropriate officers 
 

  
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS 
REPORT AND UPDATED CORPORATE RISK 
REGISTER FOR 2020-21 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report provides information regarding the Council’s Annual Risk Management 

Progress and the proposed updated Corporate Risk Register for 2020-21. 
 
1.2 As expected, all 9 of the Corporate Risks in the Corporate Risk Register as in April 

2020 have remained as Corporate Risks for 2020-21.  However, an additional 
Corporate Risk relating to the Coronavirus Pandemic (Covid-19) has been added 
and approved at Cabinet in September 2020.   

 
1.3 The report demonstrates how the Council has continued to embed the Risk 

Management requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 in its Corporate Risk Management Framework.  It also outlines how Risk 
Management has been further enhanced to include the socio-economic duty that 
came into force from the 31st March 2021. 

 
1.4 The Council’s Corporate Risk Management arrangements described within the 

Annual Progress Report have continued to mature and strengthen the Council’s Risk 
Governance arrangements by: 

 

 Supporting the delivery of the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider Council 
Priorities in it’s Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan through the 
identification, assessment and management of the Council’s Corporate Risks. 

Date Written 9th April 2021 

Report Author Matthew Rivers 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 19th April 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 Ensuring that Risk Management remains strategically focused at the Council. 

 Illustrating a clear high-level commitment to risk management from Corporate 
Management Team and Councillors. 

 Using the 4 T’s best practice process as part of the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Management Framework. 

 Embedding Risk Management across the Council. 

 Clear accountability and ownership of Corporate Risk. 

 Transparency in the review of risks. 

 Continuing to consider the risk management requirements of the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, Socio-economic Duty and the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

 Being visible and used by the Corporate Management Team to update the risk 
position for the Council, for example outcomes from exam results.  Corporate Risk 
and Service Risk will form part of the Corporate Dashboard that is being developed. 

 Using the Corporate Risk Register and process to assess of impacts of the 
coronavirus pandemic. 

 
1.5 The report is supplemented by the following appendices: 

- Appendix 1 - Council’s Annual Risk Management Progress Report,  
  contained within this document is Appendix A - Council’s proposed updated  
  Corporate Risk Register for 2020-21. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 Audit Committee note and debate the content of this report and recommend this 

report (including the Corporate Risk Register for 2021-22) progresses to Cabinet for 
approval. 

 
2.2 Audit Committee notes the continued progress made in considering the Risk 

Management requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 and the Socio-economic Duty. 

 
2.3 Audit Committee invites Lead Corporate Management Team Officers to attend on a 

rolling programme basis to report on progress in managing their Corporate Risks. 
 
2.4 Audit Committee notes the proposals to continue to present highlight reports on the 

Corporate Risk Register to Cabinet. 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 It was previously agreed at the Council meeting of 7th March 2007 that Elected 

Members should receive Risk Management Progress Reports via Cabinet and Audit 
Committee. 

 
3.2 The Council’s Annual Risk Management Progress Report and the Updated 

Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20 were presented to Audit Committee on 19th 
December 2019.  This is being done later this year due to delays in receiving the 
annual financial settlement and Officers carrying out vital roles in responding to the 

Page 4



Coronavirus Pandemic (e.g. mass testing) leading to build ups in annual leave.  
However, the annual risk highlight report was approved by Cabinet in September 
2020.  This report included an update to the Corporate Risk Register, including an 
additional Corporate Risk relating to the Coronavirus Pandemic – Covid-19 (Risk 10). 

 
3.3 Ultimate responsibility for Risk Management within the Council rests with all Elected 

Members of the Council, whilst Cabinet is allocated responsibility for overseeing Risk 
Management. 
 

3.4 In summary, Elected Members role is to: 
• Oversee the effective management of risk by Officers and Cabinet Members 

of the Council. 
• To gain an understanding of Risk Management and its benefits. 
• Consider the risks associated with proposals put forward in committee reports 

when making decisions recommended within the reports. 
• Require Officers and Cabinet Members to develop and implement an all-

encompassing approach to Risk Management. 
• Be responsible for effective governance in the delivery of services to the local 

community. 
• Take a full part in the Corporate Risk Management Process as members of 

the service management meetings, Scrutiny, Audit Committee, Cabinet 
meetings and Full Council meetings. 

 
3.5 The role of the Audit Committee, in relation to Risk Management, is to: 

• Provide a high-level focus on assurance and the Council’s arrangements for 
governance, managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment. 

• Consider the effectiveness of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements. 
• Seek assurances that actions are being taken on risk. 

 
 

4.0  COUNCIL’S ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
4.1 The Council’s Annual Progress Report on implementing Risk Management is 

attached as Appendix 1. Some of the key points to note include: 
 

 Risk Management is an integral part of the Corporate Services strategy.  It relates to 
having a supportive and collaborative culture with reduced resistance to change, 
where calculated risks can be taken to deliver sustainable change and achieve better 
outcomes.  Good risk management will enable the Council to better deliver its 
Corporate Well-being Plan and Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan 
(RTI Plan).  This is explained in more detail in Appendix 1. 

 

 The Council has a Risk Category Checklist as part of its risk identification process. 
This aims to ensure that risk identification is undertaken in a structured way to help 
ensure that all potential categories of risk are considered rather than just the initial 
risks that come to mind.  The Checklist is based on the widely used PESTLE Model 
(Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Legal and Environmental). 

 

Page 5



 The Council has continued to embed the Risk Management requirements of the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and Socio-economic Duty in its 
Corporate Risk Management Framework through its: 

 
o PESTLE Model. 
o (5 x 5) Risk Matrix. 
o Risk Registers. 
o Project Management Framework. 

 
This is discussed in more detail in the Annual Report in Appendix 1. 

 

 To support the Council in taking well managed risks the Council has adopted the 4 
T’s best practice process as part of its Corporate Risk Management Framework, 
which are: 
o Tolerate the risk; 
o Treat/Manage the risk; 
o Transfer the risk; 
o Terminate the risk. 

 
This helps the Council to focus its resources on those risks that need to be managed. 
 

 Progress on the management of the Council’s Corporate Risks was presented to 
Audit Committee on 19th December 2019. 
 

 A Highlight Report for the Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20 was considered and 
approved by Cabinet on 16th September 2020. 

 

 Each Chief Officer and Head of Service has a Service (or Operational) Risk Register 
in place.  These Risk Registers have been reviewed and updated in 2020-21, in line 
with the Risk Management requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. 

 

 As part of the review of the Council’s Corporate Risk Register, a Risk identification 
workshop was held with Cabinet and Corporate Management Team on 1st April 
2021. Feedback from the workshop has informed this report (including Appendix 1). 

 

 Staff and Councillors have undertaken refresher Risk Management training through 
the Council’s eLearning Module that has been developed in partnership with Bob's 
Business. Along with Risk Management the Council uses Bob’s Business to provide 
eLearning training to staff and Councillors on information/cyber security and Data 
Protection. The training is run over the course of a financial year. The Risk 
Management eLearning Module addresses the importance of Risk Management and 
illustrates how it supports an organisation in achieving its objectives. 

 

 In line with the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 the Council has developed an Integrated Impact Assessment. The Integrated 
Impact Assessment aims to support the Council in demonstrating how it is planning, 
delivering and monitoring services in line with the sustainable development principles 
and how it is seeking to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural 
well-being of Merthyr Tydfil, now and for future generations.  This has now been 

Page 6



updated to include the requirements of the Socio-economic Duty on the Council.  
The Integrated Impact Assessment has been rolled out for Council and Cabinet 
Reports. Implementation of the Integrated Impact Assessment will ensure that risk is 
taken into account appropriately by enabling the identification of opportunities 
(positive impacts) and/or threats (negative impacts). This includes identifying actions 
that have been/will be taken to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts. 

 

 The Council monitors risks associated with the RTI Plan through a dashboard 
presented to Corporate Management Team on a weekly basis. 

 

 The Council has a Procurement Toolkit to help service departments and staff when 
procuring goods and services. Risk Management is an integral part of this toolkit 
and will better position Procurement to manage stakeholder expectations and 
facilitate outcomes that are within the risk tolerance of the Council. There are many 
benefits to ensuring that Risk Management is embedded into the Procurement 
process, for example: 
o Smarter procurement decisions – achieving both financial and nonfinancial 

benefits. 
o Fewer surprises; better identification and achievement of stakeholder 

expectations through acknowledgement of risks. 
o Better procurement outcomes for buyers and suppliers, satisfying the 

commercial and relationship needs of both parties. 
 

 The Council’s Corporate Risk Management arrangements described within the 
Annual Progress Report have continued to mature and strengthen the Council’s 
Risk Governance arrangements by: 
o Supporting the delivery of the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider 

Council Priorities in it’s Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan 
through the identification, assessment and management of the Council’s 
Corporate Risks. 

o Ensuring that Risk Management remains strategically focused at the Council. 
o Illustrating a clear high-level commitment to risk management from Corporate 

Management Team and Councillors. 
o Using the 4 T’s best practice process as part of the Council’s Corporate Risk 

Management Framework. 
o Embedding Risk Management across the Council. 
o Clear accountability and ownership of Corporate Risk. 
o Transparency in the review of risks. 
o Continuing to consider the risk management requirements of the Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, Socio-economic Duty and the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

o Being visible and used by the Corporate Management Team to update the risk 
position for the Council, for example outcomes from exam results.  Corporate 
Risk and Service Risk will form part of the Corporate Dashboard that is being 
developed. 

o Using the Corporate Risk Register and process to assess of impacts of the 
coronavirus pandemic. 
 

 

Page 7



5.0 CORPORATE RISKS - CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2020-21 
 
Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Risk Identification Workshops 
 
5.1 As part of the Council’s Corporate Risk Management Framework risk identification 

workshops are held for Corporate Management Team and Cabinet to identify the 
most significant Corporate Risks that could impact on the Council and/or community.  
It should be noted that the Council’s Recovery, Transformation and Improvement 
Plan acts to mitigate our Corporate Risks. 
 

5.2 The objectives of the Corporate Management Team Risk Identification Workshop 
were as follows: 

 To identify and risk score the most significant Corporate Risks that could impact 
on the Council and/or Community. 

 To agree risk responses for each Corporate Risk using the 4 T’s best practice 
process, which are: 

o Tolerate the risk; 
o Treat/Manage the risk; 
o Transfer the risk; 
o Terminate the risk. 

 To agree the Lead Corporate Management Team Officer and Lead Councillor / 
Cabinet Member for each Corporate Risk. 

 

5.3 Risk identification workshops were held for Corporate Management Team on 26th 
October 2020 and Cabinet on 27th October 2020.  This was followed up with 
discussions between Corporate Management Team and the Cabinet.  At this time 
the Council was not clear of when and type of budget settlement it would receive.  As 
such it was difficult to assess the financial corporate risk.  As such, following 
discussion with the Head of Audit, it was decided to revisit this process once a 
budget settlement was received to add more certainty around the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register.  Due to available capacity (following supporting the 
council’s response to responding to Coronavirus Pandemic) this was picked up in 
March 2020 with a joint Corporate Management Team and Cabinet workshop taking 
place on the 1st April 2021. 

 
5.4 The objectives of the Cabinet Risk Identification Workshop were as follows: 

 Consider the Corporate Risks identified by Corporate Management Team. 

 Review the risks identified at previous Councillor Risk Workshops. 

 Identify any additional risks as per each Portfolio. 
 

5.5 The Corporate Risk Register was reviewed in the Risk Workshops by: 

 Re-appraising the Corporate Risks in the Council’s Corporate Risk Register for 
2020-21 to determine if they were still Corporate Risks for 2021-22. 

 Agreeing risk responses for each Corporate Risk (4T’s). 

 Agreeing the Lead Corporate Management Team Officer & Lead Councillor / 
Cabinet Member for each Corporate Risk. 

 Considering if there were any new Corporate Risks facing the Council and/or 
community – This included the new risk (risk number 10) relating to the Councils 
response to the coronavirus pandemic. 

Page 8



Analysis of Corporate Risk Register for 2020-21 
 
5.6 As expected, all ten of the Corporate Risks in the Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20 have remained as Corporate Risks for 

2020-21. These are common long term cross cutting risks that will face this and other Councils going forward.  It was 
established that this is also likely to be the case for the most recently added Corporate Risk regarding the Coronavirus 
Pandemic (Covid-19). 
 

5.7 The risks that were reviewed and identified at the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet risk workshop will continue to 
be managed and monitored as part of the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet responsibilities.  Any new risks 
identified that are not currently recorded in a Risk Register will be added as appropriate. 
 

5.8 Each Corporate Risk in the Corporate Risk Register has been allocated a Risk Type, Lead Corporate Management Team 
Officer and Lead Councillor/Cabinet Member. The table below provides a summary of the Corporate Risk Register for the 10 
Corporate Risks, in terms of risk number, type and description. The Corporate Risk Register for 2020-21 is available in 
Appendix 1. 
 

Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Risk Score 

(Sept. 2020) 

Risk Score 

(April 2021) 

Lead Councillor / Lead 

Corporate Management Team 

Officer 

1 (i) 

Finance 

The Council does not balance the budget in-

year. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 2 

Risk Score = 10 Councillor Andrew Barry 

Chief Finance Officer 1 (ii) The Council is not financially sustainable 

going forward. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

2 Reputation The risk that the Council fails to maintain 

and protect its reputation. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Cabinet 

Head of Corporate 

Communications, Consultation & 

Engagement 

P
age 9



Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Risk Score 

(Sept. 2020) 

Risk Score 

(April 2021) 

Lead Councillor / Lead 

Corporate Management Team 

Officer 

3 Cyber Attack The risk that the Council is exposed to a 

cyber attack that could cause a catastrophic 

failure. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Councillor Andrew Barry 

Chief Finance Officer 

4

  

School 

Attainment 

The risk that all learners do not perform at 

expected levels.  

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 25 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 25 

Councillor Lisa Mytton 

Chief Officer (Learning) 

5 (i) 

Capacity 

The risk that the Council loses staff with 

high skills and experience and are unable to 

recruit staff to the required ability to fulfil 

their role. 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 12 
Councillor Andrew Barry 

Head of HR 5 (ii) The risk that the Council does not have the 

general capacity to deliver key outcomes 

and targets (e.g. the Council has many 

Single Points Of Dependency (SPODs)). 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

6 Compliance The risk that the Council does not meet 

statutory requirements, laws and 

regulations. 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Councillor Andrew Barry 

Monitoring Officer 

7 Brexit The risk that Brexit will have an adverse 

economic impact at the national and local 

level that will in turn have a negative 

financial, strategic and legislative impact on 

the Council, and subsequently the delivery 

of public services.  

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 3 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 9 

Councillor Lisa Mytton 

Deputy Chief Executive 

P
age 10



Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Risk Score 

(Sept. 2020) 

Risk Score 

(April 2021) 

Lead Councillor / Lead 

Corporate Management Team 

Officer 

8 Safeguarding 

 

The risk that the Council does not fulfil its 

statutory obligations and the Council’s 

safeguarding arrangements fail to safeguard 

children, adults and Council staff. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Councillor Chris Davies 

Chief Officer - Social Services 

(Statutory Director of Social 

Services) 

9 Performance The risk that the Council's statutory 

regulators issue a formal recommendation 

to the Council for improvement. 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 20 

Cabinet 

Corporate Management Team 

10 Covid-19 The coronavirus pandemic will have an 
adverse health and economic impact on 
Merthyr Tydfil, in turn affecting all functions 
of the Council and the ability to provide 
public services across the Country Borough. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Cabinet 

Corporate Management Team 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 11



6.0 NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 The Council’s Annual Risk Management Progress Report and Updated Corporate 
Risk Register for 2020-21 will be presented to Cabinet in May 2021 for consideration 
and approval. 
 

6.2 In order to provide Corporate Management Team, Council, Cabinet and Audit 
Committee with a level of assurance that the Council’s Corporate Risks are being 
managed the following steps will be undertaken: 

 

 As in previous years, Lead Corporate Management Team Officers will continue 
to be invited to Audit Committee on a rolling programme basis to report on 
progress in managing the Corporate Risks they are responsible for monitoring 
and managing. 
 

 Highlight reports on the Corporate Risk Register will continue to be presented to 
Cabinet, as well as continuing the current arrangements with Audit Committee. 

 
 

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 

7.1 There are no specific financial implications identified in this report although good 
Risk Management supports sound financial management and helps maximise 
financial resources and minimise losses. Any financial implications arising from this 
process will be reported to Cabinet/Council as appropriate, including potential 
options for funding. 

 
 

 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS CHANGE & 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
APPENDIX 1 - ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2019-20 AND 
CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2020-21 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 12



Page 1 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2019-20  

AND  

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2020-21 

 

 

 

P
age 13



Page 2 of 51 
 

Contents 
SECTION 1 – ROLE OF RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE ................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 2 – PESTLE, RISK MATRIX, CORPORATE RISK REGISTER AND THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT ..................................................................... 5 

SECTION 3 – 4 T’s OF RISK MANAGEMENT .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

SECTION 4 – SERVICE RISK REGISTERS .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 5 – CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2019-20 .............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

SECTION 6 – CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 2020-21 .................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT TRAINING ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 24 

SECTION 8 – INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 9 – RECOVERY, TRANSFORMATION AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN ............................................................................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 10 – MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS ................................................................................................................................ 30 

SECTION 11 – PROCUREMENT RISK MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................................................................................................. 31 

SECTION 12 – OTHER RISK MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENTS ................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

SECTION 13 – RISK GOVERNANCE .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 33 

APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2020-21 ................................................................................................................................................. 34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 14



Page 3 of 51 
 

SECTION 1 – ROLE OF RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE 
 

1.1 What do we want to achieve? - The aim of the Corporate Risk Management Service is to promote and integrate risk management 
principles across the Council so that threats and opportunities are identified, evaluated, managed and monitored.  This will impact on: 
 

 Delivering the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider Priorities; 

 The well-being of our communities and future generations; 

 Services delivered by the organisation i.e. Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC). 
 

1.2 Risk Management is an integral part of MTCBC’s governance arrangements and is part of the Corporate Services Strategy on a Page to 

deliver the service in line with the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.3 Key components of the Strategy on a Page are: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
This allows the Council to manage Corporate Risk by effective monitoring and supporting the development and delivery of action plans. 

 

 

Long Term Prevention Integration Collaboration Involvement 

A supportive and collaborative culture 

with reduced resistance to change, where 

calculated risks can be taken to deliver 

sustainable change and achieve better 

outcomes 

The Council is compliant with 

all statutory and legislative 

requirements 

P
age 15



Page 4 of 51 
 

1.4  The Tasks for the Risk Management Service are as follows: 
 

Support the monitoring and management of the Council’s Corporate Risk Register and Chief Officer and Service Risk Registers which 

are actively used by the Council and each Service in order to prioritise the risks to be managed and the actions required to manage 

those risks. 

Progress in managing Corporate Risks is reported to Audit Committee. 

Present Corporate Risk Register Highlight Reports to Cabinet. 

Continue to develop a clear understanding and knowledge of Risk Management so that Corporate Management Team and Councillors 

continue to recognise and incorporate Risk Management as part of their role. 

Continue to embed Risk Management across the Council through Performance Management and Business Planning, Financial 

Management, Programme/Project Management, Procurement and Partnerships. 

Play a key role in the production of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

Continue to consider the Risk Management requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 16



Page 5 of 51 
 

SECTION 2 – PESTLE, RISK MATRIX, CORPORATE RISK REGISTER AND THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 
 

PESTLE Model 

2.1 The Council has a Risk Category Checklist as part of its risk identification process. This aims to ensure that risk identification is 

undertaken in a structured way to help ensure that all potential categories of risk are considered rather than just the initial risks that come 

to mind. 

2.2 The Checklist is based on the widely used PESTLE Model (Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Legal and Environmental). 

2.3 The PESTLE Model can be used to reflect other areas of risk in relation to partnerships, procurement and reputation.  The model can also 

include culture to ensure the Council considers risk from an environmental, social, economic and cultural well-being perspective, in line 

with the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the Act). 

2.4 The 5 ways of working (Long Term, Integration, Involvement, Collaboration and Prevention) have also been included in the model to 

ensure they are considering the sustainable development principle when developing risk action plans. 

2.5 The PESTLE Model also forms part of the Council’s Project Management Framework. 

Council’s (5 x 5) Risk Matrix 

2.6 The Council uses a (5 x 5) Risk Matrix to assess risks in terms of ‘Impact’ and ‘Likelihood’.  This also facilitates the ability to reflect the 

requirements of the Act in terms of considering potential impacts on the well-being of communities and future generations. 

Council’s Corporate Risk Register and Service Risk Registers 

2.7 The Council’s Corporate Risk Register and Service Risk Registers consider the requirements of the Act as follows: 

 Risks are considered from a community and organisational perspective in terms of assessing the risk impact on: 
o The well-being of our communities and Future Generations (Social, Economic, Environmental and Cultural Well-being) 
o Risk Impact on the Organisation. 

 Considering if risks are short, medium and/or long term. 

 Consideration of the 5 ways of working (the sustainable development principle) when identifying the controls and further actions to 
manage the risks and issues. 
 

P
age 17



Page 6 of 51 
 

SECTION 3 – 4 T’s OF RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

4 T’s 

3.1 To support taking well managed risks, the Council has adopted the 4 T’s best practice process as part of its Corporate Risk Management 

Framework, which are: 

 Tolerate the risk; 

 Treat/Manage the risk; 

 Transfer the risk; and 

 Terminate the risk. 
 

3.2 This helps the Council to focus its resources on those risks that need to be managed. For example, it has been agreed that each of the 

Council’s Corporate Risks need to be treated; therefore each Corporate Risk has a dedicated risk action plan to manage the Council’s 

Corporate Risks. 

3.3 The 4 T’s process has been embedded in the Council’s Project Management Framework.  

3.4 In addition to this, as part of the Council’s Project Management Framework, Project Managers are required to identify the benefits 

(advantages) and consequences or dis-benefits (disadvantages) for each project/change, which further supports the Council in taking well 

managed risks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18



Page 7 of 51 
 

SECTION 4 – SERVICE RISK REGISTERS 
 

Service Risk Registers 

4.1 Each Service or Section has a Risk Register associated with their areas of responsibility.  These Risk Registers have been reviewed and 

updated for 2019-20, in line with the Risk Management requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 to 

consider the following: 

 Using the Council’s PESTLE Model, risks and issues have been identified, that could impact on: 
o Delivering the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider priorities. 
o The well-being of our communities and future generations. 
o The organisation (MTCBC). 

 Consideration of the response to each risk/issue using the 4 T’s - Tolerate the risk; Treat/Manage the risk; Transfer the risk; Terminate 
the risk. 

 Consideration if the risks and issues are short, medium and/or long term. 

 Consideration of the 5 ways of working (the sustainable development principles) when identifying the controls and further actions to 
manage the risks and issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 19



Page 8 of 51 
 

SECTION 5 – CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2019-20 
 

5.1 The Council’s Corporate Risk Register is an essential part of the organisation’s corporate governance arrangements. 

5.2 The Corporate Risk Register allows the Council to focus on managing and mitigating the most significant Corporate Risks that could 

impact on the organisation and/or community.  

5.3 The Council defines Corporate Risks as follows: 

 Significant threats:  
o to the achievement of the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider Council priorities. 
o to the well-being of communities and future generations; 
o that need to be monitored corporately. 

 

 Potential opportunities that may better enable delivery of: 
o the achievement of the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider Council priorities;  
o outcomes for the well-being of communities and future generations. 

 

5.4 The Council’s Annual Risk Management Progress Report and the Updated Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20 was presented to Audit 

Committee on 19th December 2019.  This is being done later this year due to delays in receiving the annual financial settlement and 

Officers carrying out vital roles in responding to the Coronavirus Pandemic (e.g. mass testing) leading to build ups in annual leave.  

However, the annual risk highlight report was approved by Cabinet in September 2020.   

5.5 To provide Cabinet and wider Elected Members with a level of assurance regarding how the Council’s Corporate Risks are being 

managed, it has been resolved by both Audit Committee and Cabinet that: 

 Lead Corporate Management Team Officers be invited to attend Audit Committee on a rolling programme basis to report on progress 
in managing their Corporate Risks. This will continue to be built into forward plans as appropriate.   
 

5.6 This provides Audit Committee with an opportunity to seek assurance that current/existing controls are in place and that further planned 

actions are being implemented by Lead Corporate Management Team Officers to manage the Council’s Corporate Risks.   

 

P
age 20



Page 9 of 51 
 

5.7 It should be noted that under the new Local Government and Elections Act 2021, the Audit Committee will be known as the Governance 

and Audit Committee.  This will naturally further strengthen how risk is embedded into our governance arrangements.   

5.8 Progress on the management of the Council’s Corporate Risks was presented to Cabinet in the ‘Highlight Report for the Corporate Risk 

Register 2019-2020’ on the 16th September 2020.   

 

Highlight Report 

5.9 It has previously been resolved by Audit Committee and Cabinet that highlight reports on the Council’s Corporate Risk Register are 

presented to Cabinet, alongside the current arrangements with Audit Committee. 

5.10 The highlight report provides further assurance to Cabinet that controls are in place and further actions are being implemented as planned 

to manage the Council’s Corporate Risks.  This is aimed to mitigate any negative impacts on delivery of the Council’s Well-being 

Objectives and wider Council priorities to ensure that the risk exposure to the Council is reduced over time. 

5.11 A highlight report has been created with input from across the Council.  This document reports the Corporate Risk position as at the 16th 

September 2020.  Due to unprecedented times resulting from the Coronavirus Pandemic, a number of Committee meetings were 

cancelled during 2020.  To ensure the Council monitored it’s Corporate Risk Register and included a risk regarding the Coronavirus 

Pandemic, the highlight report included an update to the Corporate Risk Register (including the new risk resulting from the Coronavirus 

Pandemic).  This followed the usual process of Corporate Management Team and Cabinet workshops.   

5.12 The highlight report captures the following high level risk information supported by the more detailed Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20: 

 Risk No. 

 Description of Risk. 

 Risk Score in the Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20, latest Risk Score and direction of travel for each Risk. 

 Progress on Actions to Manage Risk (RAG Status). 

 Assurance Statement on the Management of Corporate Risks and if any Further Actions are required. 

 Lead Corporate Management Team Officer. 

 Lead Councillor/Cabinet Member. 
 

 

 

P
age 21



Page 10 of 51 
 

Analysis of Highlight Report for Corporate Risk Register 2019-20 (as at 31st March 2020) – A look back at where we were 

 

5.13 The table below shows the Council’s position regarding Corporate Risk as at the 31st March 2020. It should be noted that the finance risk 

is now split into 2 parts.  This is counted as 2 risks in the table below for monitoring purposes but features as 1 risk in the Corporate Risk 

Register (i.e. part i and ii). 

 The number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores have increased, decreased or remained the same for 2019-20 when compared 
to 2018-19. 

 The new Corporate Risk relates to the impact the Coronavirus Pandemic will have on the ability of the Council to deliver services. 
 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores 

have increased 
2 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores 

have decreased 
1 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores 

have remained the same 
7 

Number of new Corporate Risks 1 

Total 10* 

* - It was approved at Cabinet on the 29th January 2020 (following discussion at 

Audit Committee on the 19th December 2019) to split the financial risk into in-year 

risk and longer-term risk; the in-year risk had decreased.   

 

The Risk Scores for the School Attainment (from 20 to 25) and Performance (from 12 to 20) both increased at this point, you will recall 

that the rationale for this was explained in the ‘Annual Risk Management Progress Report and Updated Corporate Risk Register for 

2019-2020’ report to Cabinet on the 29th January 2020.  Following the 2019-2020 annual report, MTCBC has developed a Recovery, 

Transformation and Improvement Plan (RTI Plan).  This is explained in more detail below.  Addressing these risks is a priority in the plan 

as agreed by Officers, Elected Members and Scrutiny Members in workshops set up regarding the RTI Plan.  A specific strategy (Raising 

Aspirations Raising Standards Strategy) was being developed at this time and has since been approved by Council on the 25th 

P
age 22



Page 11 of 51 
 

November 2020.   This addresses the School Attainment risk by focusing on increasing education standards, thus also acting to mitigate 

the performance risk.  The governance improvement work programme in the RTI Plan will also help mitigate the Performance risk across 

the Council.  By Officers, Elected members and Scrutiny Members working together, we will provide a greater focus on performance and 

further strengthen our scrutiny provision.   

The Risk Score for Finance (in-year, 2019/20) had reduced as at March 2020 when compared to the annual report (29th January 2020).  

The subsequent budget closure reports have shown that the in-year budget for 2019/20 has been met. 

The remaining Risk Scores remained the same as at March 2020 when compared to the annual report (29th January 2020). 

The following Corporate Risk was developed and scored at the outbreak of the Coronavirus Pandemic and approved by Cabinet in 

September 2020: 

  

Risk 

No. 

Description of Risk Risk Score Comparison against 

last assessment 

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer 

Lead Councillor/ 

Cabinet Member 

10 Pandemic (COVID-19) 

The coronavirus pandemic will have an adverse health and economic 

impact on Merthyr Tydfil, in turn affecting all functions of the 

Council and the ability to provide public services across the Country 

Borough. 

New Corporate Risk identified for 2019/20. 

20 

New Risk 

 

 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Corporate 

Management Team 
Cabinet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

! 

P
age 23



Page 12 of 51 
 

Mitigating the new Corporate Risk (risk number 10, relating to the 

impacts of the Coronavirus Pandemic on the Council’s ability to deliver 

functions) forms part of the design of our Recovery, Improvement and 

Recovery Plan (RTI Plan).  Risk number 10 has been given a risk score 

of 20 (impact = 5; likelihood = 4) in terms of the Council can deliver its 

functions.  A Recovery Sub-Group has been set up to support the 

Councils recovery (this is done to support the RTI Plan and not in 

isolation).  The group has identified 4 key themes of recovery with plans 

under each (see opposite).  This may be expanded as Officer, Elected 

Member and Scrutiny Member workshop consider various aspects of the 

RTI Plan.  Services have developed risk and equality impact 

assessments to inform service-related recover plans.  Mitigation plans 

on a service level have been successfully implemented to ensure we 

continue to meet the needs of our communities.   

An example of this, is where resource lists have been developed across the Council so that we are able to reallocate staff to meet the 

need of delivery.  This was used to support the mass testing operation in the autumn of 2020.  Due to the seriousness of the situation, 

this risk score is regularly reviewed (at least quarterly, but with the ability to be reviewed weekly at Corporate Management Team 

meetings) and in line with Welsh Government guidance.   

Service risk registers are being updated to reflect this and other risks affecting operations, such as the changes to our weather patterns 

and dealing with storms (e.g. the impact of Storm Dennis experienced last year). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 24



Page 13 of 51 
 

5.14 This position was reviewed and approved by Cabinet in September 2020 as part of the ‘Highlight Report for the Corporate Risk Register 

2019-2020’.  The table below shows the Council’s position regarding Corporate Risk as at the 16th September 2020.   

This includes: 

 The number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores have increased, decreased or remained the same for 2019-20. 

 No risk scores were judged to reduce at this stage (between March 2020 and September 2020) with the increase in likelihood 
increasing regarding the in-year financial risk. 

 The new Corporate Risk relates to the impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic in how the Council will be able to deliver services (it 
is classed as a new risk here as it was approved in September 2020). 

 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores 

have increased 
1 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores 

have decreased 
0 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores 

have remained the same 
9 

Number of new Corporate Risks 1 

Total 10* 

* - It was approved at Cabinet on the 29th January 2020 (following discussion at 

Audit Committee on the 19th December 2019) to split the financial risk into in-year 

risk and longer-term risk; the in-year risk had decreased.   

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 25



Page 14 of 51 
 

The only risk score to increase was 1(i) Finance (The Council does not balance the budget in-year), going from a risk score of 10 (impact 

= 5; likelihood = 2) to a risk score of 15 (impact = 5; likelihood = 3).  Trend data shows that this is expected at the start of the financial 

year, reducing as the year progresses.  This was heightened by the Coronavirus Pandemic, as reflected in this risk.  Monitoring and 

mitigation arrangements were in place (e.g. Budget Board and quarterly monitoring being reported to Cabinet) alongside funding from 

Welsh Government to mitigate this risk. 

 

 The Risk Map provides a visual representation of the Council’s risk exposure categorising the Corporate Risks as follows below: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Please note that we have analysed both aspects of the financial risk, hence the total being 11 risks in the chart. 

 

 

 

 

 

Colour 

Status 

Risk Risk 

Score 

No. of 

Corporate 

Risks 

Black Catastrophic 20 - 25 6 

Red Critical 12 - 16 5 

Amber High 8 - 10 0 

Yellow Medium 4 - 6 0 

Green Low 1 - 3 0 

P
age 26



Page 15 of 51 
 

The overall summary of the MTCBC Corporate Risk Register position at 16th September 2020 is 

summarised below: 

 

 

Appendix A shows the Corporate Risk Register.

RISK MATRIX 

Im
p

ac
t 

Catastrophic 5 5 

 

 

10 

 

 

15 

 

1(i). Finance 

8.Safeguarding 

20 

1(ii). Finance          

2. Reputation        

3. Cyber Attack 

9.Performance 

10. Pandemic 

(COVID-19) 

25 

 

4.School 

Attainment 

 

  

Critical  4 4 8 

 

 

12 

 

 

 

16 

5.Capacity 

6.Governance 

7. Brexit 

 

20 

 

 

 
  

High 3 3 6 9 12 15 

  

Medium 2 

 

  2 4 6 8 10 

  

Low 1 1 2 3 4 5 

  

      1 2 3 4 5   

  

    Very Low/ 

Rare 

Unlikely Possible Probable Certain/ 

Almost 

Certain 

  

      Likelihood   

Page 27



Page 16 of 51 
 

SECTION 6 – CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 2020-21 
 

Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Risk Identification Workshops – Our current position 

 

6.1 As part of the Council’s Corporate Risk Management Framework risk identification workshops are held for Corporate Management Team 

and Cabinet to identify the most significant Corporate Risks that could impact on the Council and/or community.  It should be noted that 

the Council’s Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan acts to mitigate our Corporate Risks.     

  

6.2  Risk identification workshops were held for Corporate Management Team on 26th October 2020 and Cabinet on 27th October 2020.  This 
was followed up with discussions between Corporate Management Team and the Cabinet.  At this time the Council was not clear of when 
and type of budget settlement it would receive.  As such it was difficult to assess the financial corporate risk.  As such, following discussion 
with the Head of Audit, it was decided to revisit this process once a budget settlement was received to add more certainty around the 
Council’s Corporate Risk Register.  Due to available capacity (following supporting the council’s response to responding to Coronavirus 
Pandemic) this was picked up in March 2020 with a joint Corporate Management Team and Cabinet workshop taking place on the 1st April 
2021.   

 

6.3 The objectives of the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Risk Identification Workshop were as follows: 

 To identify and risk score the most significant Corporate Risks that could impact on the Council and/or Community. 

 To agree risk responses for each Corporate Risk using the 4 T’s best practice process, which are:  
o Tolerate the risk;  
o Treat/Manage the risk, 
o Transfer the risk; and 
o Terminate the risk. 

 To agree the Lead Corporate Management Team Officer and Lead Councillor / Cabinet Member for each Corporate Risk. 

 Identify any additional risks as per each Portfolio. 
 

  Analysis of Corporate Risk Register for 2020-21 

6.4 As expected, all ten of the Corporate Risks in the Corporate Risk Register for 2019-20 have remained as Corporate Risks for 2020-21. 

These are common long term cross cutting risks that will face this and other Councils going forward.  It was established that this is also 

likely to be the case for the most recently added Corporate Risk regarding the Coronavirus Pandemic (Covid-19).   

P
age 28



Page 17 of 51 
 

6.5 The risks that were reviewed and identified at the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet risk workshop will continue to be managed 

and monitored as part of the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet responsibilities.  Any new risks identified that are not currently 

recorded in a Risk Register will be added as appropriate. 

6.6 The outcomes from the workshop are detailed against each Corporate Risk in the table below.  In summary it was felt that: more clarity 

was needed to explain the ‘Governance’ risk; the ‘Capacity’ risk could be split into 2, the first regarding recruitment and retention of staff 

(risk score of 12) and the second relating to general capacity (e.g. Single Points Of Dependency (SPODs)) (risk score of 16), please note 

that the Capacity Risk was scored at 16 previously; both elements of the financial risk could be reduced; the reputation risk reducing; the 

BREXIT (or EU Transition) risk can be reduced.   

Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Cabinet and Corporate Management Team Workshop - 

Outcomes 

1 (i) 

Finance 

The Council does not balance the budget in-

year. 

It is felt that both finance risks can be reduced as we have set a 

balanced budget and we have a surplus in the budget last year. 

There are still hardship fund monies available together with the 

levelling up fund.  Therefore, it was agreed that we have confidence 

in the finances and the scores are lowered to reflect that. 

1 (ii) The Council is not financially sustainable 

going forward. 

2 Reputation The risk that the Council fails to maintain and 

protect its reputation. 

Reputation was deemed to be good (based on general feedback 

received in responding to the Coronavirus Pandemic) and therefore 

the risk score could be reduced.  It was agreed that this position is to 

be reviewed in 3 months. 

3 Cyber Attack The risk that the Council is exposed to a 

cyber attack that could cause a catastrophic 

failure. 

It was felt that this remains a risk at the same score. 

4 School 

Attainment 

The risk that all learners do not perform at 

expected levels. 

It was discussed how this corporate risk is mitigated through actions 

set out in the Councils RTI Plan.  An example of this being the 

‘Raising Aspirations Raising Standards’ strategy.  However, it was 

felt that the score needs to remain the same at this time.  As 

measures are not being captured due to the Coronavirus Pandemic, 

it will be difficult to measure performance. 

P
age 29



Page 18 of 51 
 

Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Cabinet and Corporate Management Team Workshop - 

Outcomes 

5 Capacity The risk that the Council loses staff with the 

skills and capacity to deliver on key 

outcomes and targets. 

Discussion was held to ensure we clearly explain what is meant by 

capacity.  As such it is felt that this needs to be split into 2 parts (as 

with the finance risk above). 

The first element being around recruitment and losing skilled staff.  

This was entered into the description when the Council needed to 

reduce staffing levels and considering the additional enhanced 

VER/VR scheme.   

The second element concerns general capacity and number of 

SPODs across the Council.   

Following the capacity exercise that was undertaken in 2020/21 

(where the Council added £705,000 to the medium-term financial 

plan relating to staffing) there is possible scope for an extra phase to 

include capacity and the skills needed to support the Council’s RTI 

Plan and any new ways of working.   

6 Governance The risk that the Council does not meet 

statutory requirements, laws and regulations. 

Discussion was held regarding the risk description and what is 

meant by ‘Governance’. 

It was felt that the description needs to be explicit in showing this 

relates to meeting statutory duties of the Council and not how we 

undertake general business. 

7 Brexit The risk that Brexit will have an adverse 

economic impact at the national and local 

level that will in turn have a negative 

financial, strategic and legislative impact on 

the Council, and subsequently the delivery of 

public services. 

Discuss was held as to whether BREXIT (or EU Transition) needs 

remains on our corporate risk register. It was agreed that we still are 

unsure about the effect of leaving the EU in January 2021, therefore 

it remains but is reviewed as there is still funding available to 

manage the transition and any negativity. 

P
age 30



Page 19 of 51 
 

Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Cabinet and Corporate Management Team Workshop - 

Outcomes 

8 Safeguarding 

 

The risk that the Council does not fulfil its 

statutory obligations and the Council’s 

safeguarding arrangements fail to safeguard 

children, adults and Council staff. 

It was felt that this remains a risk at the same score. 

9 Performance The risk that the Council's statutory 

regulators issue a formal recommendation to 

the Council for improvement. 

It was discussed how this is related to the School Attainment risk, 

and like that risk, the Councils RTI Plan acts to mitigate it.  We have 

not seen increases in performance, so the likelihood remains 5 and 

impact 4.  This is being strengthen as Officer, Elected Members and 

Scrutiny Members work together to refine the RTI Plan and how we 

place more focus on Performance.  Quarterly performance reviews, 

strengthening the scrutiny function and staff performance are all 

being worked on.  As such it is felt that the mitigation actions can be 

updated to reflect this, but the risk score remains until we see 

improvements in performance. 

10 Covid-19 The coronavirus pandemic will have an 
adverse health and economic impact on 
Merthyr Tydfil, in turn affecting all functions 
of the Council and the ability to provide 
public services across the Country Borough. 

It was felt that this remains a risk at the same score. 

 

 

6.7 Each Corporate Risk in the Corporate Risk Register has been allocated a Risk Type, Lead Corporate Management Team Officer and 

Lead Councillor/Cabinet Member. The table below provides a summary of the Corporate Risk Register for the 10 Corporate Risks. The 

Corporate Risk Register is available in Appendix A.   

 

P
age 31



Page 20 of 51 
 

Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Risk Score 

(Sept. 2020) 

Risk Score 

(April 2021) 

Lead Councillor / Lead 

Corporate Management Team 

Officer 

1 (i) 

Finance 

The Council does not balance the budget in-

year. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 2 

Risk Score = 10 Councillor Andrew Barry 

Chief Finance Officer 1 (ii) The Council is not financially sustainable 

going forward. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

2 Reputation The risk that the Council fails to maintain 

and protect its reputation. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Cabinet 

Head of Corporate 

Communications, Consultation & 

Engagement 

3 Cyber Attack The risk that the Council is exposed to a 

cyber attack that could cause a catastrophic 

failure. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Councillor Andrew Barry 

Chief Finance Officer 

4

  

School 

Attainment 

The risk that all learners do not perform at 

expected levels.  

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 25 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 25 

Councillor Lisa Mytton 

Chief Officer (Learning) 

5 (i) 

Capacity 

The risk that the Council loses staff with 

high skills and experience and are unable to 

recruit staff to the required ability to fulfil 

their role.  

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 12 
Councillor Andrew Barry 

Head of HR 

5 (ii) The risk that the Council does not have the 

general capacity to deliver key outcomes 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

P
age 32



Page 21 of 51 
 

Risk 

No. 

Risk Type Description of Risk Risk Score 

(Sept. 2020) 

Risk Score 

(April 2021) 

Lead Councillor / Lead 

Corporate Management Team 

Officer 

and targets (e.g. the Council has many 

Single Points Of Dependency (SPODs)). 

Risk Score = 16 Risk Score = 16 

6 Compliance The risk that the Council does not meet 

statutory requirements, laws and 

regulations. 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Councillor Andrew Barry 

Monitoring Officer 

7 Brexit The risk that Brexit will have an adverse 

economic impact at the national and local 

level that will in turn have a negative 

financial, strategic and legislative impact on 

the Council, and subsequently the delivery 

of public services.  

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 16 

Impact = 3 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 9 

Councillor Lisa Mytton 

Deputy Chief Executive 

8 Safeguarding 

 

The risk that the Council does not fulfil its 

statutory obligations and the Council’s 

safeguarding arrangements fail to safeguard 

children, adults and Council staff. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 3 

Risk Score = 15 

Councillor Chris Davies 

Chief Officer - Social Services 

(Statutory Director of Social 

Services) 

9 Performance The risk that the Council's statutory 

regulators issue a formal recommendation 

to the Council for improvement. 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 4 

Likelihood = 5 

Risk Score = 20 

Cabinet 

Corporate Management Team 

10 Covid-19 The coronavirus pandemic will have an 
adverse health and economic impact on 
Merthyr Tydfil, in turn affecting all functions 
of the Council and the ability to provide 
public services across the Country Borough. 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Impact = 5 

Likelihood = 4 

Risk Score = 20 

Cabinet 

Corporate Management Team 

P
age 33



Page 22 of 51 
 

6.8 A summary of the Corporate Risk Register in April 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RISK MATRIX 

Im
p

ac
t 

Catastrophic 5 5 

 

 

10 

 

1(i). Finance 

15 

1(ii). Finance    

2. Reputation      

8. Safeguarding 

20 

3. Cyber Attack 

9.Performance 

10. Pandemic 

(COVID-19) 

25 

 

4.School 

Attainment 

   

Critical  4 4 8 

 

 

12 

5(i). Capacity 

 

 

16 

5(ii). Capacity 

6. Compliance 

 

20 

 

 

   

High 3 3 6 9 

7. Brexit 

12 15 

  

Medium 2 

 

  2 4 6 8 10 

  

Low 1 1 2 3 4 5 

  

      1 2 3 4 5   

  

    Very Low/ 

Rare 

Unlikely Possible Probable Certain/ 

Almost 

Certain 

  

      Likelihood   

Page 34



Page 23 of 51 
 

6.9 When comparing the Corporate Risk Register following the Cabinet and Corporate Management Team workshop, and September 2020, 

the following was found:  

 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores have increased 0 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores have decreased 5 

Number of Corporate Risks where the Risk Scores have remained the same 7 

Number of new Corporate Risks identified 0 

Total 12* 

* - Although there remains 10 corporate risks, 2 have been split into 2, hence 

the total being 12. 

 

6.10   In line with requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 the Corporate Risk Register for 2010-21 continues to 

capture: 

 The risk impacts on the well-being of our communities and future generations; 

 If the risks are short, medium and/or long term; and 

 Consideration of the 5 ways of working (the Sustainable Development Principles) when identifying the controls and further actions to 
manage the risks and issues. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



Page 24 of 51 
 

SECTION 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT TRAINING 
 

 

Risk Management e-Learning Module 

7.1 Staff and Councillors have undertaken refresher Risk Management training through the Council’s e-Learning Module that has been 

developed in partnership with Bob's Business.  Along with Risk Management the Council uses Bob’s Business to provide e-Learning 

training to staff and Councillors on information/cyber security and Data Protection.  The training is run over the course of each financial 

year. 

7.2 The Risk Management e-Learning Module addresses the importance of risk management and illustrates how it supports an organisation in 

achieving its objectives. The module also helps to further develop a clear understanding and knowledge of risk management across the 

Council so that Councillors and Officers recognise and incorporate risk management as part of their role. 

7.3      The module covers the following areas and at the end of the training session there is a multiple-choice quiz: 

 An introduction to Risk Management; 

 The benefits of Risk Management; 

 The key elements of the Risk Management Process; 

 The 4 T’s of Risk Management (Tolerate, Treat, Transfer and Terminate); and 

 Roles and Responsibilities relating to Risk Management. 
 

7.4 ICT accounts are disabled at the end of the financial year for those staff and Councillors that do not complete all of the e-Learning 

modules during the year. 

 

Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Risk Identification Workshops 

7.5 As part of the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Risk Identification Workshops Officers and Councillors are provided with Risk 

Management refresher training to ensure that Corporate Management Team and Councillors continue to develop a clear understanding 

and knowledge of Risk Management. This aids when recognising and incorporating Risk Management as part of their role. 

 

 

 

P
age 36



Page 25 of 51 
 

 

SECTION 8 – INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

Equality Impact Assessments 

8.1  In line with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 (Wales) Regulations 2011 and Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 the Council 

previously has an Equality Impact Assessment process in place.  This now forms part of the Council’s integrated impact assessment.  This 

was a mandatory accompaniment to reports to Cabinet and Council. 

8.2 This demonstrates how Councillors and Officers considered Equality and Welsh language as part of their decision making. 

8.3 The equality impact assessment aspect (considering protected characteristics) also enables report authors to identify any threats (negative 

impacts) and/or opportunities (positive impacts) that could impact on Protected Groups and the Welsh language, including identifying any 

related actions to mitigate any negative impacts and/or maximise positive impacts. 

 

 Integrated Impact Assessment 

8.4 In line with the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the Act) and the socio-economic duty (coming into 

place from the 31st March 2021) the Council has further developed its Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA). The IIA aims to support the 

Council in demonstrating how it is planning, delivering and monitoring services in line with the sustainable development principles and how 

it is seeking to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Merthyr Tydfil, now and for future generations by: 

 Thinking about the long term impact of our work on people in Merthyr Tydfil;  

 Taking an integrated approach to services, looking at the impact our work could have on other services and organisations; 

 Involving people in the decisions that affect them; 

 Working with others to find collaborative solutions; and  

 Understanding the root causes of issues and preventing them from occurring. 
 

 

   

 

P
age 37



Page 26 of 51 
 

8.5 The IIA incorporates the Council’s Well-being Objectives, the Sustainable Development Principle, Equalities, Welsh language, Socio-

Economic Duty and Biodiversity, to support effective decision making and ensuring compliance with the following legislation: 

 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015; 

 Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011; 

 Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011; 

 Section 6 of Part 1 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016; and 

 Socio-Economic Duty. 
 

 
8.6 Implementation of the IIA will: 

 

 Ensure that the sustainable development principles are at the heart of all we do and embedded in the governance processes of the 
Council.  

 Shape what we do, rather than justify what we have decided in the past - the shaping of services rather than the justifying of services.  

 Mean a focus up front and throughout the project/policy or decision cycle.  

 Mean better decision making that is transparent and based on evidence. 

 Ensure that our decisions impact in a fair way. 

 Provide a platform for partnership working. 

 Ensure that risk is taken into account appropriately by enabling the identification of opportunities (positive impacts) and/or threats 
(negative impacts). This includes identifying actions that have been/will be taken to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate 
any negative impacts. 

 Ensure we consider our socio-economic duty (socio-economic disadvantage and inequality of outcome, ensuring we contribute to a 
more equal Wales).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 38



Page 27 of 51 
 

 

SECTION 9 – RECOVERY, TRANSFORMATION AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

9.1 Following setting a balanced budget for 2019/2020, we took a proactive step and asked Welsh Government to 

support us in these challenging times.  The Minister for Housing and Local Government appointed an Improvement 

and Assurance Board (AIB) to carry out a rapid assessment exercise.  To respond to the outcomes of this 

assessment, we developed a Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan (RTI) Plan. 

9.2 The development of the RTI Plan was done in 2020, during the Coronavirus Pandemic.  As with most organisations, 

we have firstly had to respond to the needs of our residents during the pandemic.  Following this, we will 

transition to recovery.  This is reflected in the RTI Plan. 

9.3 The RTI Plan is a live document that enables us to focus on sustainability when recovering from the pandemic, 

transforming the way we work and improving delivery of outcomes for our residents.  This plan will provide a 5-

year improvement path for MTCBC.   

9.4 Our RTI Plan identifies 3 areas we need to address urgently to be able to better deliver our well-being objectives, meaning better 

outcomes for our residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These will address our 

priority outcomes: Improve the educational 

outcomes for all children 

and young people 

Ensure people are able to live 

independently and safely within 

their communities 

Developing the environment 

and infrastructure for 

businesses to flourish 

These are our 3 priorities 

for improvement: 

P
age 39



Page 28 of 51 
 

9.5 Working with our Improvement and Assurance Board, we have considered the short, medium and long term.  We have prioritised our 

improvement, allowing us to use our limited resources to best deliver the needs of our residents.  With the support of Welsh Government, 

Elected Members, our Staff and Partners we will create a modern and agile Council that is focused on providing quality services to the 

people of Merthyr Tydfil. 

9.6 To better deliver our outcomes we must change the way we work.  The RTI Plan is supported by 4 council-wide 

transformation work programmes.  These help us consider our digital opportunities, become more commercially 

aware, have the right resources (a Healthy Organisation) and good governance (the way we work).  

9.7 Our RTI Plan also focuses on carbon reduction and meeting our recycling targets in supporting Environmental Well-

being. 

9.8 To achieve our shared vision, we must deliver our services differently - we need to look at how we work better together, 

with more joined up thinking, increased partnership and embrace new technology and innovation. This approach has 

been adopted to help us to respond to the Coronavirus Pandemic.  These principles and priorities form the basis of the RTI Plan and were 

supported by all Elected Members at a workshop in September 2020.  The principles align with our operating model and the sustainable 

development principle.   

9.9 The overarching governance for the RTI Plan is as follows.  The Council’s Corporate Management Team meet weekly as the programme 

board overseeing the delivery of the plan.  This includes how risks within programmes of the plan are being managed alongside how the 

plan is mitigating our Corporate Risks.  The IAB meets monthly, receiving updates on the RTI Plan from the Corporate Management 

Team, reviewing progress and improvement and feeding back to Welsh Government. 

9.10 A RTI Plan Steering Group is in place to feed up to the Corporate Management Team.  The steering group meets weekly.  This group 

supports the plan through allocation of cross-cutting support services.  One of these is risk management.  This ensures that a consistent 

and thorough approach to risk management is provided.  Each programme has a risk log that is managed as part of delivering the RTI 

Plan.  The Council’s Project Management Framework is used to deliver the RTI Plan.  Risk Management principles are embedded within 

this framework and approach.   

9.11 The Terms of Reference for the steering group includes the arrangements for Risk Management as follows: 

 The Steering Group owns one or more identified project risks, the management of which it will delegate to appropriate persons (e.g. 
Heads of Service, Team Leaders, Programme or Project Managers). The Steering Group will monitor risks, and review with the 
Programme/Project Manager, any change in status and agree any action to be taken to mitigate the risks. These risks are documented 
as part of each business case within this programme and monitored under identified risk logs. 

 

P
age 40



Page 29 of 51 
 

9.12 The steering group receives regular reports from programme lead officers. These reports update on delivery against timescales, budget, 

resources, risks and issues.   

9.13 RTI Plan risks and issues are logged and reviewed on a quarterly basis through a workshop facilitated by the Head of Corporate Services 

with Senior Change Management Officers, feeding into an RTI Plan dashboard that is presented to the Corporate Management Team. 

9.14 It’s also important to highlight that risks and issues are a standing item on the steering group agendas and forms part of the RTI Plan 

dashboard feeding into Corporate Management Team meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 41



Page 30 of 51 
 

SECTION 10 – MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 

Revised Medium Term Financial Plan 

10.1 As part of the Medium Term Financial Plan Corporate Management Team identified additional growth items including additional staffing 

provision (addressing the mitigation of the Capacity Corporate Risk) 2020-2021.  All proposals feeding into the budget setting process are 

risk assessed by Chief Officers and Service Managers before challenge at Elected Member and Officer workshops, Audit and joint 

Scrutiny Committees before going to Cabinet and Council for decision.  Please note that as of the 31st March 2021, the Audit Committee 

will be known as the ‘Governance and Audit Committee’ in line with changes from the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.   

 

Statement of Accounts 

10.2 The Council’s Statement of Accounts 2019-20 that were presented to Full Council on 25th November 2020 included a summary of the 

Council’s Corporate Risks as at 31st March 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

P
age 42



Page 31 of 51 
 

SECTION 11 – PROCUREMENT RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

11.1 The Council has a Procurement Toolkit to help service departments and staff when procuring goods and services. 

11.2 Risk Management is an integral part of this toolkit and will better position the Procurement Team to manage stakeholder expectations and 

facilitate outcomes that are within the risk tolerance of the Council. Risk Management, when applied effectively, will assist the 

Procurement Team and services to identify changes to the procurement environment, implement treatment plans and re-engineer cost 

effective procurement processes to mitigate risk. 

11.3 The consequence of not managing risk effectively can include: 

 Discontinuity in the supply of essential goods or services. 

 Avoidable increases in project costs and in the unit costs of purchases, both immediate and longer term. 

 Loss of power and influence in relationships with essential suppliers. 

 Procurement outcomes that do not support the Councils’ needs and objectives. 

 Opportunity for fraud and corruption. 

 Negative impact on reputation in the marketplace. 

 Exposure of officers to litigation. 

 Failure in corporate governance controls. 
 

11.4 There are many benefits to ensuring that Risk Management is embedded into the Procurement process, but there are three that would be 

almost universally achieved: 

 Smarter procurement decisions – achieving both financial and non-financial benefits. 

 Fewer surprises; better identification and achievement of stakeholder expectations through acknowledgement of risks.   

 Better procurement outcomes for buyers and suppliers, satisfying the commercial and relationship needs of both parties. 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 43



Page 32 of 51 
 

SECTION 12 – OTHER RISK MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENTS 
  

Audit & Risk Management 

12.1 The Council’s Risk Management processes continue to inform Internal Audit work and similarly, Internal Audit work has supported the Risk 

Management arrangements. An example of this is where Internal Audit has audited a number of Corporate Risks from the Corporate Risk 

Register in order to provide an independent opinion on the management of these critical risks, including the effectiveness of the internal 

controls and further actions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 44



Page 33 of 51 
 

SECTION 13 – RISK GOVERNANCE 
  

13.1 Finally, it is pleasing to report that the Council’s Corporate Risk Management arrangements described within this Annual Progress Report 

have continued to mature and strengthen the Council’s Risk Governance arrangements by: 

 Supporting the delivery of the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider Council Priorities in it’s Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan through the identification, assessment and management of the Council’s Corporate Risks. 

 Ensuring that Risk Management remains strategically focused at the Council. 

 Illustrating a clear high-level commitment to risk management from Corporate Management Team and Councillors. 

 Using the 4 T’s best practice process as part of the Council’s Corporate Risk Management Framework. 

 Embedding Risk Management across the Council. 

 Clear accountability and ownership of Corporate Risk. 

 Transparency in the review of risks. 

 Continuing to consider the risk management requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, Socio-economic 
Duty and the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

 Being visible and used by the Corporate Management Team to update the risk position for the Council, for example outcomes from 
exam results.  Corporate Risk and Service Risk will form part of the Corporate Dashboard that is being developed. 

 Using the Corporate Risk Register and process to assess of impacts of the coronavirus pandemic. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 45



Page 34 of 51 
 

APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CORPORATE RISK REGISTER FOR 2020-21 

 

 

Assessment of Risk for 

2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

1 (i) Finance

The Council 

does not 

balance the 

budget in-

year.

1. Failing to deliver the Council's Well-being 

Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the delivery of all 

public services that the Council delivers.

3. The need to further prioritise spend on 

Council services.

4. Reduction in jobs - The Council is a large 

employer in the County Borough employing 

people who live in Merthyr Tydfil. Therefore, 

this risk would have an adverse economic 

impact on families in Merthyr Tydfil.

5. People moving out of the area due to lack 

of employment opportunities.

1. The Council is currently in the process of delivering options identified 

through the Change and Well-being Programme.

2. Budget Monitoring processes and Cabinet/Council/Scrutiny reports. 

3. Budget Board Scrutiny.

4. Change and Well-being Board Scrutiny aided by the Change and Well-

being Steering Group.

5. The continued moratorium on non-essential expenditure.

6. A meaningful Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in aligning resources 

to the Well-being Objectives whilst recognising the long term implications of 

future generations.

7. Options for delivering savings include collaboration and joint working with 

other Local Authorities in continuing to deliver priority services within 

affordable resources. 

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor 

/ Cabinet 

Member

Action(s) Required to Manage 

the Risk 

(Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways 

of working when considering 

the further actions?

Risk No.
Description of 

Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of our 

communities and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working when considering the 

controls?
Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

15 10 Treat

Response to 

Risk

Chief Finance 

Officer

Councillor

Andrew Barry

1. Accountancy to further 

scrutinise budgets through the 

budget monitoring regime.                            

2. Accountancy to work closely 

with budget managers to aid 

financial/operational 

understanding.

3. Portfolio Cabinet Members, 

Chief Officers, Heads of Service, 

Service Managers and Service 

Accountants subject to increased 

accountability through the Budget 

Board and the Change and Well-

being Programme Board 

whereby delivery of services is 

contained within approved 

budgets and with any projected 

variances subject to further 

scrutiny.

4. Corporate Management Team 

supported by the Improvement 

and Assurance Board in 

formulating the Transformation 

Programme in ensuring the 

Council remains financially 

sustainable for the long term. 

Corporate Sustainability a 

continuing theme throughout the 

budget setting process for 

2020/21 and beyond.

8. Engagement with the community underpins budget reduction decisions.                            

9. Investment in the preventative agenda is considered critical in sustaining 

high quality services whilst providing value for money.    

10. Corporate Management Team ownership and resolve.

P
age 46



Page 35 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Risk for 

2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

1. The Council is currently in the process of delivering options identified 

through the Change and Well-being Programme.

2. Budget Monitoring processes and Cabinet/Council/Scrutiny reports. 

3. Budget Board Scrutiny.

4. Change and Well-being Board Scrutiny aided by the Change and Well-

being Steering Group.

5. The continued moratorium on non-essential expenditure.

6. A meaningful Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in aligning resources 

to the Well-being Objectives whilst recognising the long term implications of 

future generations.

7. Options for delivering savings include collaboration and joint working with 

other Local Authorities in continuing to deliver priority services within 

affordable resources. 

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor 

/ Cabinet 

Member

Action(s) Required to Manage 

the Risk 

(Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways 

of working when considering 

the further actions?

Risk No.
Description of 

Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of our 

communities and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working when considering the 

controls?
Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

20 15

Response to 

Risk

Treat

Chief Finance 

Officer

Councillor

Andrew Barry

1. Accountancy to further 

scrutinise budgets through the 

budget monitoring regime.                            

2. Accountancy to work closely 

with budget managers to aid 

financial/operational 

understanding.

3. Portfolio Cabinet Members, 

Chief Officers, Heads of Service, 

Service Managers and Service 

Accountants subject to increased 

accountability through the Budget 

Board and the Change and Well-

being Programme Board 

whereby delivery of services is 

contained within approved 

budgets and with any projected 

variances subject to further 

scrutiny.

4. Corporate Management Team 

supported by the Improvement 

and Assurance Board in 

formulating the Transformation 

Programme in ensuring the 

Council remains financially 

sustainable for the long term. 

Corporate Sustainability a 

continuing theme throughout the 

budget setting process for 

2020/21 and beyond.

8. Engagement with the community underpins budget reduction decisions.                            

9. Investment in the preventative agenda is considered critical in sustaining 

high quality services whilst providing value for money.    

10. Corporate Management Team ownership and resolve.

Finance

The Council is 

not financially 

sustainable 

going forward.

1 (ii) 1. Failing to deliver the Council's Well-being 

Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the delivery of all 

public services that the Council delivers.

3. The need to further prioritise spend on 

Council services.

4. Reduction in jobs - The Council is a large 

employer in the County Borough employing 

people who live in Merthyr Tydfil. Therefore, 

this risk would have an adverse economic 

impact on families in Merthyr Tydfil.

5. People moving out of the area due to lack 

of employment opportunities.

P
age 47



Page 36 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment 

of Risk for 

2019-20

Assessment 

of risk for 

2020-21
Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / Cabinet 

Member

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase 

Risk to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of 

our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental 

and Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working when 

considering the controls?

Head of Corporate 

Communications, 

Consultation and 

Engagement, 

Corporate 

Management Team 

and 

Cabinet

Reputation

The risk that the 

Council fails to 

maintain and protect 

its reputation.

2 1. Additional barrier to delivering the 

Council's Well-being Objectives.

2. Adverse impact on inward 

investment in the County Borough.

3. The public do not engage with the 

Council to help shape service 

delivery across the County Borough.

4. Low levels of community and 

stakeholder participation.

5. Poor public perception and loss of 

confidence in the Council.

1. To change public perception and improve the 

reputation of both the Council and Merthyr Tydfil as 

a whole, the Leader and Chief Executive have 

agreed an annual campaign plan to work more 

closely with our community and stakeholders by 

keeping them more informed and better engaged.

2. A Communication and Consultation Strategy has 

been developed as a Quality Improvement Theme.

3. Reputation Management Action Plan in 

development.

4. An annual Resident's Satisfaction Survey will be 

issued across the County Borough to capture views 

and satisfaction rates on a wide range of issues and 

services relevant to Merthyr Tydfil. The results of 

the survey will help to shape future service delivery 

across the County Borough.

Treat1520

1. The Communication and 

Consultation Strategy will deliver the 

following:

• Provide clear leadership, having 

clarity about what the Council 

stands for and making sure it is 

understood by the whole 

organisation.

• Continue to promote the Council’s 

brand which provides a clear sense 

of purpose and embodies the 

values.

• Build upon our drive to 

communicate and engage 

strategically so we have the right 

skills to improve the reputation.

2. Develop a Social Media Strategy 

to boost visibility and customer 

engagement.

3. Develop an Annual Campaign 

Plan.

4. Develop an Internal 

Communication and Engagement 

strategy, together with action plan.

5. Develop an Annual Residents 

Survey.

P
age 48



Page 37 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk for 

2019-21

Assessment of Risk 

for 2020-21
Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead 

Councillor / 

Cabinet 

Member

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to 

Manage the Risk 

(Mitigate/Reduce/Increase 

Risk to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five 

ways of working when 

considering the further 

actions?

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of 

our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental 

and Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing 

Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the 

five ways of working 

when considering the 

controls?

1. Adverse impact on service 

delivery.

2. Loss of customer information and 

data.

3. Loss of Council information and 

data.

3 Cyber Attack

The risk that the Council is 

exposed to a cyber attack 

that could cause a 

catastrophic failure.

1. Further user awareness 

required.

2. Cyber Essentials 

compliance.

3. WG Cyber Resilience 

Funding

4. Maintain ISO 27001, PSCI 

DSS and PSN compliance.

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Chief Finance 

Officer

Councillor 

Andrew Barry

Treat2020

1. User training in place.

2. Anti-virus software in 

place.

3. ISO 27001 

compliance.

4. PCI DSS compliance.

5. Patch Management.

6. Annual IT Health 

Checks carried out.

7. Cyber Essentials.

8. PSN Compliance.

P
age 49



Page 38 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of 

Risk for 2019-20

Assessment of 

Risk for 2020-21

1. Schools are supported and challenged 

to prepare for the introduction of the new 

curriculum and qualifications.

2. School improvement capacity transfer 

from Local Authority and Central South 

Consortium to schools and between 

schools.

3. All schools have adopted an 

appropriate, systematic approach to 

managing attendance/exclusions.

4. Hold Governing Bodies and Head 

Teachers to account for effective 

strategies to address performance - 

standards/attendance.

5. Schools are supported and challenged 

to meet the needs of all pupils.                    

6. Effective arrangements in place to 

monitor and evaluate systematically all 

Additional Learning Needs services 

provided for, or commissioned by the 

Local Authority.                             

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / Cabinet 

Member

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

1a. Corporate performance board for 2 

secondary schools and PRU's are taking 

place (Termly)

For 1 other secondary school, there is one 

half termly board which includes, Welsh 

Government and ESTYN

1b. Extensive leadership programme for 

Senior Middle Leaders and class teachers in 

place for all secondary schools plus PRU

2. Continue to Promote ‘Miss School Miss 

Out’.

4b. Council Officers together with 

Headteachers complete a fundamental review 

of the Enhanced Support process.

5. Utilise the Additional Learning Needs 

Transformation monies to prepare schools 

and Council staff for the introduction of the 

ALNET Act (regional basis).

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-

being of our communities 

and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage 

the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

controls?

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the Risk 

(Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk to an 

Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the further actions?

7. School to School Support is being 

developed to become the effective, 

efficient and economical vehicle for 

securing school improvement.

1. Vulnerable children do not 

attain or achieve.

2. Reduction in opportunities 

for young people beyond 

compulsory education.

3. Negative impact on 

employment and 

employability rates.

4. Failing to deliver the 

Council's Well-being 

Objectives.

School Attainment

The risk that not all 

learners perform at 

expected levels.

4

Chief Officer 

(Learning)

Councillor Lisa Mytton

Treat2525

P
age 50



Page 39 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of Risk 

for 2020-21

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / Cabinet 

Member

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of our 

communities and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage 

the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

controls?

16

1. Re-structures/redesign to reorganise 

work-projects for change via the Change 

and Well-being Programme.

2. Succession Planning is integrated into 

Workforce and Operational Business 

Planning (aligned to SOAPs).

3. Applying the Redundancy Process and 

Selection Criteria correctly and robustly so 

that the right behaviours as well as skills 

are retained.

4. Redundancy training undertaken by key 

Officers.

5. Individuals are offered training as part 

of the Redeployment Process, where 

required.

6. Business cases for voluntary early 

retirement and voluntary redundancy 

require managers to have a robust 

business case where they demonstrate 

that there is no essential skills loss if the 

employee leaves.

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

Head of HR

Councillor

Andrew Barry

Treat12

1. Failing to deliver the Council's Well-

being Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the delivery of all 

public services that the Council delivers.

3. Reduction in jobs - The Council is a 

large employer in the County Borough 

employing people who live in Merthyr 

Tydfil. Therefore, this risk would have an 

adverse economic impact on families in 

Merthyr Tydfil.

4. People moving out of the area due to 

lack of employment opportunities.

Capacity

The risk that the Council 

loses staff with high 

skills and experience 

and are unable to recruit 

staff to the required 

ability to fulfil their role.

5 (i) 1. Review our current Performance 

Management procedures, together 

with focus groups with a view to re-

launching in 2018.

2. Develop Workforce Plans in 

conjunction with relevant Chief 

Officers and Heads of Service 

Operational Plans and Strategies on 

a Page.

3. Implement Apprenticeship Scheme 

working in partnership with Rhondda 

Cynon Taf County Borough Council.

4. Review and evaluate Managers 

Academy and Leadership 

Programme.

5. Having robust process to redesign 

the Council, challenging existing 

practices of work and exploring new 

opportunities (i.e. shared resources 

across directorates).

P
age 51



Page 40 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of Risk 

for 2020-21

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / Cabinet 

Member

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of our 

communities and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage 

the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

controls?

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

16 Treat

1. Review our current Performance 

Management procedures, together 

with focus groups with a view to re-

launching in 2018.

2. Develop Workforce Plans in 

conjunction with relevant Chief 

Officers and Heads of Service 

Operational Plans and Strategies on 

a Page.

3. Implement Apprenticeship Scheme 

working in partnership with Rhondda 

Cynon Taf County Borough Council.

4. Review and evaluate Managers 

Academy and Leadership 

Programme.

5. Having robust process to redesign 

the Council, challenging existing 

practices of work and exploring new 

opportunities (i.e. shared resources 

across directorates). Head of HR

Councillor

Andrew Barry

5 (ii) Capacity

The risk that the Council 

does not have the 

general capacity to 

deliver key outcomes 

and targets (e.g. the 

Council has many Single 

Points Of Dependency 

(SPODs)).

1. Failing to deliver the Council's Well-

being Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the delivery of all 

public services that the Council delivers.

3. Reduction in jobs - The Council is a 

large employer in the County Borough 

employing people who live in Merthyr 

Tydfil. Therefore, this risk would have an 

adverse economic impact on families in 

Merthyr Tydfil.

4. People moving out of the area due to 

lack of employment opportunities.

1. Re-structures/redesign to reorganise 

work-projects for change via the Change 

and Well-being Programme.

2. Succession Planning is integrated into 

Workforce and Operational Business 

Planning (aligned to SOAPs).

3. Applying the Redundancy Process and 

Selection Criteria correctly and robustly so 

that the right behaviours as well as skills 

are retained.

4. Redundancy training undertaken by key 

Officers.

5. Individuals are offered training as part 

of the Redeployment Process, where 

required.

6. Business cases for voluntary early 

retirement and voluntary redundancy 

require managers to have a robust 

business case where they demonstrate 

that there is no essential skills loss if the 

employee leaves.
16

P
age 52



Page 41 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of 

Risk for 2019-20

Assessment of 

Risk for 2020-21
Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the Risk 

(Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk to an 

Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the further 

actions?

Monitoring Officer

Councillor Andrew 

Barry

1. Chief Officers and Heads of Service to 

maintain appropriate links with the Welsh 

Government, Welsh Local Government 

Association, All Wales Monitoring Officers 

Group, Association of Directors of Social 

Services Cymru, Association of Directors of 

Education in Wales, Society of Local 

Authority Chief Executives and Senior 

Managers, County Surveyors’ Society 

Wales, Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy, etc., so that there is early 

awareness of upcoming initiatives so as to 

allow maximum time for planning.

Relevant officers to report on educational 

improvement activities on a regular basis

2. Chief Officers and Heads of Service to 

ensure effective reporting to Members and 

that staff training plans are in place. Such 

changes to be picked up in individual One to 

Ones.

Treat1616

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-

being of our communities 

and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and Cultural 

Well-being)

Risk Impact on the Organisation

1. Chief Officers and Heads 

of Service ensure that staff 

are fully appraised of their 

statutory responsibilities and 

any subsequent changes to 

their responsibilities.

2. Directorates have identified 

key individuals who will 

apprise team members of any 

changes to policies, 

procedures, etc and identify 

key risks.

3. Directorate projects to be 

managed and evaluated to 

ensure they comply with 

statute / case law seeking 

corporate support where 

appropriate.

1. Potential intervention or Council being 

placed in special measures as a result of 

regulatory or Welsh Government action.

2. Failing to meet statutory obligations.

3. Council acting ultra vires / unlawfully.

4. Potential litigation claims against the 

Council.

5. Poor reputation of the Local Authority 

and adverse negative publicity.

1. Adverse impact upon the 

delivery of all public services 

that the Council delivers.

Compliance

The risk that the 

Council does not 

meet statutory 

requirements, laws 

and regulations.

6

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Current / Existing Controls 

to Manage the Risk 

Have you applied the five 

ways of working when 

considering the controls?

P
age 53



Page 42 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of 

Risk for 2020-

21

1. The Council’s Deputy Chief Executive and 

Chief Officer for Regeneration have been 

identified as the Council’s Brexit Leads.

2. As part of the management of the Brexit 

Corporate Risk the Council has established a 

core working group to identify and address the 

implications of Brexit. The group is led by the 

Council’s Brexit Leads and consists of team 

members who are best placed to manage and 

mitigate this Corporate Risk.

3. The Council has developed a Brexit 

Preparedness Project Plan to manage and 

mitigate the implications of Brexit in line with 

the requirements of the Welsh Local 

Government Association’s Brexit Preparedness 

Toolkit.

4. The Council has used the Toolkit to guide a 

risk based approach and is preparing as best 

we can with the information available.

5. The Council have fully engaged with the 

Local Resilience Forum discussions to date 

and we are checking that Business Continuity 

Plans would be sufficient in the event of being 

activated. 

6. The Council have engaged with its supply 

chains and looked at issues such as food 

resilience for Schools and Care Homes. We 

are also engaging with the local food banks to 

discuss their Brexit readiness and this work is 

ongoing.

7. The Council have completed the exercise 

workflow on Data and GDPR/Brexit issues and 

submitted its response on 15th March 2019.

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Response to Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage 

the Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase 

Risk to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways 

of working when considering the 

further actions?

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being 

of our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and Cultural 

Well-being)

Risk Impact on the Organisation

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

1. Budget overspends. 

2. Failing to deliver statutory 

obligations.

3. Loss of key staff and institutional 

knowledge.

4. Having to identify further budget 

savings over the coming years.

5. Poor reputation of the Local 

Authority and adverse negative 

publicity.

6. Deterioration of Council buildings.

1. Failing to deliver the Council's 

Well-being Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the 

delivery of all public services that 

the Council delivers.

3. The need to further prioritise 

spend on Council services.

4. Lack of employment 

opportunities in the County 

Borough, potential redundancies 

linked to a slower economy and a 

reduction in training opportunities 

for residents strategically aligned 

to regeneration programmes.

Brexit

The risk that Brexit will 

have an adverse economic 

impact at the national and 

local level that will in turn 

have a negative financial, 

strategic and legislative 

impact on the Council, and 

subsequently the delivery 

of public services.

7

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Chief Officer 

(Regeneration)  

Leader of the 

Council

1. Apply for the Welsh Local 

Government Association grant 

funding to provide the Council with a 

dedicated resource to undertake 

the necessary planning, co-

ordination and preparation for 

Brexit.

Treat916

P
age 54



Page 43 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of 

Risk for 2020-

21

8. The Council’s Corporate Management Team 

and Cabinet Members have received a Welsh 

Local Government Association Briefing on 

Brexit that provided guidance on the key 

implications for Councils and the necessary 

planning required for all scenarios.

9. The Council have attended Brexit Welsh 

Local Government Association Workshops and 

participated in a Home Office Briefing 

teleconference on EU Citizens in the UK.

10. Funding has been secured through Welsh 

Government for the appointment of Community 

Cohesion Regional Officers. The remit of the 

Officers will include focusing on the support 

and delivery of preventative activities that 

promote social integration and mitigates any 

negative impacts of Brexit on community 

cohesion.

11. Brexit EU Settlement Scheme Awareness 

Training have been provided to members of 

staff across a number of services, including 

Registrars, Human Resources, Housing and 

Supporting People, Social Services, Benefits, 

Revenues, Financial Assessment, Grants and 

Customer Services.

12. A dedicated page for Brexit has been 

created on the Council’s website, which 

includes links to UK Government Information, 

the EU Settlement Scheme and Preparing 

Wales for a No Deal Brexit.

13. A risk workshop has been held with the 

Council’s Brexit Working Group to identify the 

most significant risks caused by Brexit that 

could impact on:

• The Council.

• Services.

• The Community.

14. The Council have undertaken a workforce 

audit of its staff who are non-UK EU Nationals.

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Response to Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage 

the Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase 

Risk to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways 

of working when considering the 

further actions?

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being 

of our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and Cultural 

Well-being)

Risk Impact on the Organisation

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

1. Budget overspends. 

2. Failing to deliver statutory 

obligations.

3. Loss of key staff and institutional 

knowledge.

4. Having to identify further budget 

savings over the coming years.

5. Poor reputation of the Local 

Authority and adverse negative 

publicity.

6. Deterioration of Council buildings.

1. Failing to deliver the Council's 

Well-being Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the 

delivery of all public services that 

the Council delivers.

3. The need to further prioritise 

spend on Council services.

4. Lack of employment 

opportunities in the County 

Borough, potential redundancies 

linked to a slower economy and a 

reduction in training opportunities 

for residents strategically aligned 

to regeneration programmes.

Brexit

The risk that Brexit will 

have an adverse economic 

impact at the national and 

local level that will in turn 

have a negative financial, 

strategic and legislative 

impact on the Council, and 

subsequently the delivery 

of public services.

7

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Chief Officer 

(Regeneration)  

Leader of the 

Council

1. Apply for the Welsh Local 

Government Association grant 

funding to provide the Council with a 

dedicated resource to undertake 

the necessary planning, co-

ordination and preparation for 

Brexit.

Treat916

P
age 55



Page 44 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

8 Safeguarding

The risk that the 

Council does not 

fulfil its statutory 

obligations and 

the Council’s 

safeguarding 

arrangements fail 

to safeguard 

children, adults 

and Council staff.

1. Harm to / or death of children and 

adults caused by abuse or neglect.

2. That we do not meet the 

outcomes set for children and adults 

we work with.

3. Failing to deliver the Council's 

Priorities in respect of ‘vulnerable 

children in Merthyr Tydfil living 

healthy, safe and fulfilled lives’ and 

‘people in Merthyr Tydfil being free 

from poverty, being independent and 

healthy’.

4. Adverse impact on preventative 

services.

5. Well-being impact for staff 

working in safeguarding 

environment.

1. Safeguarding is a Priority for the Council – 

A Corporate Safeguarding Policy has been 

developed across Cwm Taf and a local 

Corporate Safeguarding Policy was agreed 

at Council in September 2015. Safeguarding 

reference group has been set up by the 

Directorate and a Corporate Safeguarding 

Plan has been developed. Safeguarding is 

also a standing agenda item on Corporate 

Management Team Meetings and within 

Education Meetings.

2. Joint lead agency within the Cwm Taf 

Safeguarding Children Board (CTSCB) and 

the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Adult Board 

(CTSAB) demonstrates leadership in 

accountability for safeguarding. We are also 

engaged well in the domestic abuse and 

Channel Panel fora.

1. Continue reporting arrangements 

during 2018-19.

3. Active engagement in the sub groups of 

the Cwm Taf Safeguarding boards by 

relevant officers means that we have in 

place:

• Strong partnership working  to share 

information and act to protect – Multi Agency 

Safeguarding Hub is an example of this.

• Robust arrangements for safeguarding 

training.

• Quality assurance, performance 

management and practice review processes 

that allow us to learn and  improve practice.

• Policies and procedures that guide high 

standards in practice.

2. Report to Council on Practice 

Reviews undertaken for Merthyr Tydfil.

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Risk No.
Description of 

Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of 

our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental 

and Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Chief Officer - 

Social Services 

(Statutory Director 

of Social 

Services)

Councillor David 

Hughes

Treat1515

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk to 

an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

P
age 56



Page 45 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

4. Governance is via Safeguarding Boards, 

reporting of safeguarding activity to Council 

within the Annual Council Reporting 

Framework (ACRF) and performance 

monitoring systems including reports being 

discussed at Scrutiny and Cabinet.

5. Increased reporting to Scrutiny Committee 

allows for questioning and challenge.

6. Education Safeguarding Team in place and 

actions taken to provide guidance and advice 

and hold schools to account e.g. through 

audits of policies and practice schools.

7. Via partnership with Voluntary Action 

Merthyr Tydfil (VAMT) and robust contract 

management we have influenced and 

improved the practice of third sector and 

providers for those working with children and 

young people.

3. Continue to review and monitor 

relevant performance and quality 

functions.

4. Continue work under the Corporate 

Safeguarding Policy which will include 

ensuring that safeguarding training is 

provided to all Council employees who 

have contact with the public. This will 

continue to be developed as part of the 

Safeguarding Reference Group which 

will consider the communication 

strategy to raise awareness of 

safeguarding.

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Risk No.
Description of 

Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of 

our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental 

and Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Chief Officer - 

Social Services 

(Statutory Director 

of Social 

Services)

Councillor David 

Hughes

Treat1515

8. Strong safeguarding practice underpins 

commissioned service provision.

9. The development of the Multi Agency 

Safeguarding Hub has ensured excellent multi 

agency working at the ‘front door’. Merthyr 

Tydfil provides a safe and robust partnership 

response to new safeguarding concerns at 

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub.

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk to 

an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

P
age 57



Page 46 of 51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Risk 

for 2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

5. Continue the work of both 

Safeguarding Boards and the 

Corporate Safeguarding Reference 

Group.

6. Ensure that despite budgetary 

restrictions we can continue to deliver 

our duty to safeguard children and 

adults at risk, and continue to work with 

colleagues and partners to ensure that 

there is effective prevention provision.

7. Continue the work streams across 

Cwm Taf (under the Social Services 

and Wellbeing (Wales)) Act 2014 to 

review and monitor safeguarding 

procedures.

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Risk No.
Description of 

Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of 

our communities and Future 

Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental 

and Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Chief Officer - 

Social Services 

(Statutory Director 

of Social 

Services)

Councillor David 

Hughes

Treat1515

8. Strong safeguarding practice underpins 

commissioned service provision.

9. The development of the Multi Agency 

Safeguarding Hub has ensured excellent multi 

agency working at the ‘front door’. Merthyr 

Tydfil provides a safe and robust partnership 

response to new safeguarding concerns at 

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub.

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk to 

an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

P
age 58



Page 47 of 51 
 

 

P
age 59



Page 48 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk for 

2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

9 Performance

The risk that the 

Council's statutory 

regulators issue a 

formal 

recommendation to 

the Council for 

improvement.

1. Failing to deliver the 

Council's Well-being 

Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the 

delivery of public services 

that the Council delivers.

External Regulatory Reports - Reporting and 

Monitoring Procedures

1. The Council's Internal Audit Department has a 

working procedure in place for the reporting and 

monitoring of recommendations from external 

regulatory reports.

2. Internal Audit record all recommendations from 

external regulatory reports on the Council's Audit 

and Inspection Action Plan (AAP) system. 3. The 

implementation of the report recommendations 

are then monitored by Audit Committee and 

Corporate Management Team.

1. Continue internal peer challenge 

and improvement e.g. Estyn Report 

Findings.

2. Continue scrutiny challenge and 

working with the Wales Audit Office 

and Future Generations 

Commissioner to test rollout of the 

Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015.

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Cabinet & 

Corporate 

Management 

Team

Treat2020

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-

being of our communities 

and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

P
age 60



Page 49 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk for 

2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

3. Continue to review internal 

governance and challenge 

mechanisms e.g. Budget Board.

4. Continue to re-inforce  awareness 

of how the Council’s vision and Well-

being of Future Generations are 

linked.

5. Continue to publish the Statement 

of Well-being, Focus on the Future: 

Well-being in our Community and 

Annual Performance Report.

6. Review and update the Council’s 

Performance Management 

Framework.

7. Rollout business planning 

monitoring approach.

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Cabinet & 

Corporate 

Management 

Team

Treat2020

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-

being of our communities 

and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

P
age 61



Page 50 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk for 

2019-20

Assessment of Risk for 

2020-21

8. Ensure that the reporting of the 

Council’s updated Well-being 

Objectives continue to form part of 

Scrutiny Committees, and the 

Council’s Senior Leadership Team 

and Future State meeting agendas.

9. Ensure that the reporting of the 

Council’s updated Well-being 

Objectives form part of meetings at 

the Council.

10. Embed Integrated Impact 

Assessment across the Council.

11. Finalise and sign off the latest 

version of the Council’s Project 

Management Framework.

12. Roll out the revised Project 

Management Framework for 

implementation.

Lead Corporate 

Management 

Team Officer & 

Lead Councillor / 

Cabinet Member

Response to 

Risk

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Cabinet & 

Corporate 

Management 

Team

Treat2020

Risk No. Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-

being of our communities 

and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, 

Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the 

Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

P
age 62



Page 51 of 51 
 

 

Assessment of Risk for 2019-20
Assessment of Risk for 2020-

21

RESOLVE - Address the immediate 

challenges that COVID-19 

represesnts to Workforce, 

customers, technology and other 

partners

RESILIENCE - address near term 

cash managament challenges, 

broader financial issues, shutdowns 

and the knock on effects, staff 

requirements to continue to provide 

business as usual as much as 

possible

RETURN - Create detailed plan to 

return to business as usual as COVID-

19 situation evolves and effects 

become clearer

REIMAGINATION - imagine what the 

next normal will look like

REFORM - Be clear about how 

regulatory and environments may shift

Work in partnership with Local 

Resilience Forums to combine and 

coordinate resources to….

Coordinate and implement financial 

support on behalf of WG for local 

businesses to survive through this 

pandemic

Lead Corporate 

Management Team 

Officer & Lead 

Councillor / Cabinet 

Member

Action(s) Required to Manage the 

Risk (Mitigate/Reduce/Increase Risk 

to an Acceptable Level)

Have you applied the five ways of 

working when considering the 

further actions?

Description of Risk

Risk impact on the well-being of our 

communities and Future Generations

(Social, Economic, Environmental and 

Cultural Well-being)

Current / Existing Controls to Manage the Risk 

Have you applied the five ways of working 

when considering the controls?

Response to 

Risk

1. Failing to deliver the Council's Well-being 

Objectives.

2. Adverse impact upon the delivery of 

public services that the Council delivers.

3. Potential increase in Social Services 

from people who have struggled with 

isolation and social reduction

COVID-19 - Coronavirus10

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Cabinet

Corporate Management 

Team

Treat2020

Staff that are not critical have been sent home. 

Those that can work from home have been doing 

so, those that do not have the capability will be at 

home but knowing that they can called in to be 

redeployed. 

Financial remodelling and discussion with creditors 

and debtors are ongoing

to assist the residents, offer to defer Council Tax 

payments to June 2020 are in place if requested

free school meals have been deliviered, at present 

the families are receiving vouchers for 

supermarkets ensuring the children have a facility 

to receive meals

Risk No.

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council 
Audit year: 2020-21 

Date issued: April 2021 

Document reference: 2367A2021-22 

 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 4



 

 

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

Audit Wales is the non-statutory collective name for the Auditor General for Wales and the Wales Audit 
Office, which are separate legal entities each with their own legal functions as described above. Audit Wales 
is not a legal entity and itself does not have any functions.  

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General or the staff of Audit Wales in relation to any member, 
director, officer or other employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is 
drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. The section 
45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public authorities, including 
consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales, Audit 
Wales and, where applicable, the auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor General are relevant third parties. 
Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to Audit Wales at 
infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will not 
lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

 

 

Page 66

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

2021 Audit Plan  

About this document 4 

My duties 4 

Impact of COVID-19 5 

Audit of financial statements 5 

Performance audit 8 

Certification of grant claims and returns 11 

Statutory audit functions 11 

Fee, audit team and timetable 11 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 67



2021 Audit Plan 

Page 4 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

About this document 
1 This document sets out the work I plan to undertake during 2021 to discharge my 

statutory responsibilities as your external auditor and to fulfil my obligations under 
the Code of Audit Practice.  

My duties 
2 I complete work each year to meet the following duties. 

Audit of financial statements 
3 Each year I audit the financial statements of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 

Council (the Council) to make sure that public money is being properly accounted 
for. 

Value for money 
4 The Council has to put in place arrangements to get value for money for the 

resources it uses, and I have to be satisfied that it has done this. 

Continuous improvement 
5 Under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure) the Council 

has to put in place arrangements to make continuous improvements, including 
related plans and reports, and the Auditor General has to assess whether the 
Council is likely to (or has) met these requirements. Some requirements of the 
Measure will cease during 2021-22 due to changes in legislation arising from the 
Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. However, I anticipate that 
during 2021-22, I will still be required to audit the Council’s published assessment 
of its performance that covers the 2020-21 year. 

Sustainable development principle  
6 Public bodies need to comply with the sustainable development principle when 

setting and taking steps to meet their well-being objectives. The Auditor General 
must assess the extent to which they are doing this. 

  

Page 68



 

Page 5 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Impact of COVID-19 
7 The COVID-19 pandemic continues to have a significant impact across the United 

Kingdom and on the work of public sector organisations. As in 2020, it is likely to 
significantly impact on the preparation of the 2020-21 accounts and my financial 
audit and performance audit work.  

8 Recent developments in relation to a vaccine programme indicate that the Welsh 
Government’s restrictions on movement and anticipated sickness absence levels 
are expected to ease through 2021. However, I recognise that there remains 
significant uncertainty and I understand that many local authorities may not be able 
to prepare accounts in line with the timetable set out in the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2014. As well as the delivery of my statutory responsibilities 
as the Auditor General, my priority is to ensure the health, safety and well-being of 
Audit Wales staff, their families and those of our partners elsewhere in the public 
service at this incredibly challenging time. 

9 Audit Wales staff will continue to work flexibly to deliver the audit work set out in 
this plan. In response to the government advice and subsequent restrictions, we 
will continue to work remotely, building on the arrangements made in 2020, until 
such time that it is safe to resume on-site activities. I remain committed to ensuring 
that the work of Audit Wales staff will not impede the vital activities that public 
bodies need to do to respond to ongoing challenges presented by the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

10 Consequently, while this audit plan sets out an initial timetable for the completion of 
my audit work, the ongoing uncertainties around the impact of COVID-19 on the 
sector mean that some timings may need to be revisited. My audit team will 
discuss any amendments required to the proposed timetable with the authority as 
the 2021 position becomes clearer.  

Audit of financial statements 
11 It is my responsibility to issue a certificate and report on the financial statements. 

This includes: 
• an opinion on the on the ‘truth and fairness’ of the Council’s financial 

statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2021; and  
• an assessment as to whether the Council’s Narrative Report and Annual 

Governance Statement is prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant 
guidance and is consistent with the financial statements and with my 
knowledge of the Council. 

12 In addition to my responsibilities for auditing the Council’s financial statements, I 
also have responsibility for: 
• responding to questions and objections about the accounts from local 

electors (additional fees will be charged for this work, if necessary); and 

Page 69



 

Page 6 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

• the certification of a number of grant claims and returns as agreed with the 
funding bodies. 

13 I do not seek to obtain absolute assurance on the truth and fairness of the financial 
statements and related notes but adopt a concept of materiality. My aim is to 
identify material misstatements, that is, those that might result in a reader of the 
accounts being misled. The levels at which I judge such misstatements to be 
material will be reported to the Audit Committee prior to completion of the audit. 

14 Any misstatements below a trivial level (set at 5% of materiality) I judge as not 
requiring consideration by those charged with governance and therefore will not 
report them. 

15 There have been no limitations imposed on me in planning the scope of this audit.  
16 I will also report by exception on a number of matters which are set out in more 

detail in our Statement of Responsibilities, along with further information about my 
work. 

Audit of financial statements risks 
17 The following table sets out the significant risks I have identified for the audit of the 

Council. 

Exhibit 1: financial statement audit risks 

This table summarises the key financial statement audit risks identified at the planning 
stage of the audit. 

Audit risk Proposed audit response 

Significant risks 

Impact of COVID-19 – Quality of Draft 
Account 
The COVID-19 national emergency 
continues and the pressures on staff 
resource and of remote working may 
impact on the preparation, audit and 
publication of accounts. There is a risk 
that the quality of the accounts and 
supporting working papers, eg around 
estimates and valuations, may be 
compromised leading to an increased 
incidence of errors. Quality monitoring 
arrangements may be compromised due 

We will discuss your closedown 
process and quality monitoring 
arrangements with the accounts 
preparation team and make 
arrangements to monitor the accounts 
preparation process. We will help to 
identify areas where there may be 
gaps in arrangements.  

Page 70

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Statement_Responsibilities_Auditor_General_Wales_Bodies_Audited_Financial_Statements_English_final.pdf


 

Page 7 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

to timing issues and/or resource 
availability.  

Impact of COVID-19 – audit risks 
The COVID-19 pandemic will have a 
significant impact on the risks of material 
misstatement and the shape and 
approach to my audit. The Welsh 
Government has made available various 
funding streams to the authority. In some 
cases, these monies provide financial 
support to the authority itself. In other 
cases, the funds have been administered 
by the authority, making payments to 
third parties on behalf of the Welsh 
Government. The amounts involved are 
material to the accounts.  
Examples of audit risks include: 
• Incorrect accounting treatment for 

COVID-19 funding ie principal or 
agency arrangements; 

• fraud/error risks; 
• potential year-end valuation 

uncertainty; and  
• estimation of accrued annual leave 

provisions. 

We will review the funding streams 
received from the Welsh Government 
and confirm the appropriate 
accounting treatment with the 
authority. 

Management Override 
The risk of management override of 
controls is present in all entities. Due to 
the unpredictable way in which such 
override could occur, it is viewed as a 
significant risk. 

My audit team will: 
• test the appropriateness of 

journal entries and other 
adjustments made in preparing 
the financial statements; 

• review accounting estimates for 
biases; and 

• evaluate the rationale for any 
significant transactions outside 
the normal course of business. 

Other audit risks 

McCloud judgement 
In 2015 the Government introduced 
reforms to public sector pensions, 

My audit team will review the 
provision previously made in relation 
to the McCloud judgement and 

Page 71



 

Page 8 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

meaning most public sector workers 
were moved into new pension schemes 
in 2015.  
In December 2018, the Court of Appeal 
ruled that the ‘transitional protection’ 
arrangements amounted to unlawful 
discrimination.   
Consultations on proposed remedies for 
the Local Government, Police and Fire 
pensions schemes closed in October 
2020. The Government recently 
announced that for unfunded schemes 
the underpin will be the deferred choice 
model for the remedy. No announcement 
has yet been made on the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. Final 
details are expected to be published 
during 2021. 
The impact of the judgement is likely to 
have a significant impact on the IAS 19 
disclosed liabilities. 

monitor progress on the development 
of proposals for a remedy to be 
applied in the LG pension schemes. 

Classification of Income and 
Expenditure 
As part of our 2019-20 audit, we 
identified that a material prior-year 
restatement was required due to an area 
of income/expenditure moving from one 
service heading to another in the 2019-
20 year. 
The Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting states that ‘if 
a local authority changes the 
presentation or classification of items in 
its financial statements, the authority 
shall reclassify comparative amounts 
unless reclassification is impracticable.’ 

My audit team undertake audit 
procedures to confirm that any 
reclassification of expenditure 
between service headings in 2020-21 
has been correctly accounted for and 
disclosed in the current and prior year 
primary statements and notes. 

Performance audit 
18 In addition to my Audit of Financial Statements I also carry out a programme of 

performance audit work to discharge my duties as Auditor General as set out on 
page 4 in relation to value for money and sustainable development.  

19 In response to the pandemic, I have adopted a flexible approach to my 
performance audit work both in terms of topic coverage and methodology. My work 
on recovery planning, COVID-19 learning and my assurance and risk assessment 

Page 72



 

Page 9 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

work are examples of this. This has enabled me to respond to the fast-moving 
external environment and provide more real-time feedback in a range of formats.  

20 For 2021-22, I intend to build on this approach to help enable my work to be 
responsive and timely, and where possible to share learning more quickly. As part 
of this approach, I anticipate that a significant proportion of my local performance 
audit programme will be delivered through the Assurance and Risk Assessment 
Project, that will be ongoing throughout the year.  

21 Given the high degree of commonality in the risks facing councils at this time I also 
intend to deliver a number of thematic projects examining risks common to all 
councils.  

22 I have consulted public bodies and other stakeholders on how I will approach my 
duties in respect of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  
This consultation was extended due to the pandemic.  

23 In my consultation I have set out and sought views on proposals to:  
a) continue to undertake specific examinations to assess the setting of well-

being objectives and how steps are being taken to meet them, respectively;  

b) integrate the examination of steps alongside value for money studies and 
local audit work, wherever possible; and  

c) strengthen and expand the co-ordination of work with the Future 
Generations Commissioner. 

24 I have written to the 44 public bodies designated under the Act setting out the 
results of the consultation and how I intend to approach this work over the 
reporting period 2020-2025.  

25 In view of the above factors I intend to retain a high degree of flexibility in my local 
performance audit programme at the Council and will continue to update the 
Council as the audit programme changes. 

26 For 2020-21 this work is set out below. 

Exhibit 2: performance audit programme 2021-22 

This table summarises the performance audit programme for 2021-22 

Performance audit programme Brief description 

Well-being of Future Generations Act 
(Wales) 2015 (WFG Act) examinations 

Further details to follow 
 

Improvement reporting audit Audit of discharge of duty to publish an 
assessment of performance. 

Page 73



 

Page 10 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Assurance and Risk Assessment Project to identify the level of audit 
assurance and/or where further audit 
work may be required in future years in 
relation to risks to the Council putting in 
place proper arrangements to secure 
value for money in the use of 
resources.  
At Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council the project is likely to focus on: 
• financial position  
• self-assessment arrangements 
• recovery planning 
• implications of the Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) 
Act 

• carbon reduction plans 
• progress against the 

recommendations in our report 
entitled ‘Assessment of progress to 
address key concerns’ 
 

Springing Forward – Examining the 
building blocks for a sustainable future 

As the world moves forward, learning 
from the global pandemic, this review 
looks at how effectively councils are 
strengthening their ability to transform, 
adapt and maintain the delivery of 
services, including those delivered in 
partnership with key stakeholders and 
communities. 

Local projects We will discuss with the Council the 
focus of one or more local projects. We 
are currently discussing a project that 
will focus on the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
University Health Board footprint. 

 
  

Page 74



 

Page 11 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Certification of grant claims and returns 
27 I have been requested to undertake certification work on the Council’s grant claims 

and returns, namely: the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim, the Non-Domestic Rates 
return and the Teachers’ Pension Contributions return.  

28 My estimated fee for this work is included within Exhibit 3.  

Statutory audit functions 
29 In addition to the audit of the accounts, I have statutory responsibilities to receive 

questions and objections to the accounts from local electors. These responsibilities 
are set out in the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004: 

• Section 30 Inspection of documents and questions at audit; and  

• Section 31 Right to make objections at audit. 
30 As this work is reactive, I have made no allowance in the fee table below. If I do 

receive questions or objections, I will discuss potential audit fees at the time.  

Fee, audit team and timetable 
31 My fees and planned timescales for completion of the audit are based on the 

following assumptions: 
• the financial statements are provided in accordance with a timescale to be 

agreed taking into account the impact of COVID-19, to the quality expected 
and have been subject to a robust quality assurance review; 

• information provided to support the financial statements is in accordance 
with the agreed audit deliverables document; 

• appropriate accommodation and facilities are provided to enable my audit 
team to deliver the audit in an efficient manner; 

• all appropriate officials will be available during the audit; 
• you have all the necessary controls and checks in place to enable the 

Responsible Financial Officer to provide all the assurances that I require in 
the Letter of Representation addressed to me; and 

• Internal Audit’s planned programme of work is complete and management 
has responded to issues that may have affected the financial statements. 

32 If I do receive questions or objections, I will discuss potential audit fees at the time.  

Fee 
33 Your estimated fee for 2021 is set out in Exhibit 3 which is in line with that charged 

in 2020. 

Page 75



 

Page 12 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Exhibit 3: audit fee 

This table sets out the proposed audit fee for 2021, by area of audit work, alongside the 
actual audit fee for last year. 

Audit area Proposed fee (£)1 Actual fee last year (£) 

Audit of accounts2 160,000 160,000 
Performance audit work3 100,390 100,390 
Grant certification work4 33,000 33,216 
Total fee 293,390 293,606 

 

34 Planning will be ongoing, and changes to my programme of audit work, and 
therefore my fee, may be required if any key new risks emerge. I shall make no 
changes without first discussing them with the Chief Finance Officer and the Audit 
Committee. 

35 Further information on my fee scales and fee setting can be found on our website. 

Audit team 
36 The main members of my team, together with their contact details, are summarised 

in Exhibit 4. 

Exhibit 4: my audit team 

This table lists the members of the local audit team and their contact details. 

Name Role Contact number E-mail address 

Huw Rees Engagement Director 
& Engagement Lead 
(Performance Audit) 

029 2032 0599 huw.rees@audit.wales  

Derwyn 
Owen 

Engagement Lead 
(Financial Audit) 

029 2032 0651 derwyn.owen@audit.wales 

 
1 Notes: The fees shown in this document are exclusive of VAT, which is not charged to 
you. 
2 Payable November 2020 to October 2021. 
3 Payable April 2021 to March 2022. 
4 Payable as work is undertaken. 

Page 76

http://www.audit.wales/about-us/fee-scales-and-fee-setting
mailto:huw.rees@audit.wales
mailto:derwyn.owen@audit.wales


 

Page 13 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Name Role Contact number E-mail address 

Helen 
Goddard 

Audit Manager 
(Financial Audit) 

029 2032 0642 helen.goddard@audit.wales 

Neall Hollis Audit Lead (Financial 
Audit) 

029 2032 0657 neall.hollis@audit.wales 

Sara-Jane 
Byrne 

Audit Manager 
(Performance Audit) 

07786 111385 sara-jane.byrne@audit.wales  

Ian Phillips Audit Lead 
(Performance Audit) 

07811 757163 ian.phillips@audit.wales 
 

Timetable 
37 The key milestones for the work set out in this plan are shown in Exhibit 5.  

As highlighted earlier, there may be a need to revise the timetable in light of 
developments with COVID-19.  

38 The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 provides electors with the right to ask questions 
and to make objections to the Authority’s accounts to the Auditor General. The 
rights to ask questions and make objections at audit are linked to electors’ rights to 
inspect the accounts that are also set out in the 2004 Act. The current COVID 
restrictions may impose restrictions on the Authority’s ability to facilitate the 
inspection of accounts. Therefore, we have not yet set a date for the exercise of 
electors’ rights and will continue to monitor the situation before confirming a date 
with you. We anticipate that we will be in a position to agree a date with you in late 
May 2021. 

Exhibit 5: Audit timetable 

Planned output Work 
undertaken 

Report finalised 

2021 Audit Plan January-March 
2021 

April 2021 

Page 77

mailto:helen.goddard@audit.wales
mailto:neall.hollis@audit.wales
mailto:sara-jane.byrne@audit.wales
mailto:ian.phillips@audit.wales


 

Page 14 of 16 - 2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Planned output Work 
undertaken 

Report finalised 

Audit of Financial statements 
work: 
• Audit of Financial Statements 

Report 
• Opinion on Financial 

Statements 
• Financial Accounts 

Memorandum 

 
 
July-September 
2021 

 
 
September 2021 
 
September 2021 
 
October 2021 

Performance audit work: 
• Annual Audit Summary 
• Well-being of Future 

Generations 
• Assurance and risk 

assessment 
• Thematic work – Springing 

Forward 
• Local project(s) TBD 

Timescales for individual projects will be 
discussed with you and detailed within the 
specific project briefings produced for each 
study. 

Grants certification work 
• Housing Benefit 
• Non-Domestic rates 
• List other schemes 

September – 
November 2021 

December 2021 

Annual Audit Summary N/A December 2021 

 
39 I can confirm that my team members are all independent of the Council and your 

officers. In addition, I am not aware of any potential conflicts of interest that I need 
to bring to your attention.

Page 78



Page 79



 

 

Audit Wales 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 
Fax: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 
Website: www.audit.wales 
We welcome correspondence and 
telephone calls in Welsh and English. 
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a 
galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. 

 

Page 80

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Regional Internal Audit Service Charter 2021/22 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present to Members the Regional Internal Audit Service Charter for 2021/22. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 That Members consider and approve the Regional Internal Audit Service Charter for 

2021/22. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the purpose, authority 

and responsibility of Internal Audit activities. The Internal Audit Charter establishes 
Internal Audit’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records, 
personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and 
defines the scope of Internal Audit activities. 

 
3.2 The purpose of this Regional Internal Audit Shared Service (RIASS) Charter is to 

define the purpose, authority and responsibilities of the Regional Internal Audit 
Shared Service across Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of 
Glamorgan Councils.  
 

3.3 The Charter establishes the position of internal audit activity within each Council 
along with reporting lines, authorising access to records, personnel and physical 
property relevant to the performance of audit work and defines the scope of internal 
audit activities.   

Date Written 1st April 2021  

Report Author M Thomas 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 19th April 2021 

Page 81

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the charter and presenting it 

to each Council’s Audit Committee annually for review and approval in line with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  
 

3.5 The PSIAS are applicable to all areas of the United Kingdom public sector and are 
based on the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditor’s (CIIA’s) International 
Professional Practices Framework.  
 

3.6 The Regional Internal Audit Shared Service is committed to meeting the standards 
laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards Framework and any 
significant deviations from the Standards will be reported to the Audit Committee. 
 

3.7 The Charter is split into the following sections: 
1. Purpose, Authority and Responsibility; 
2. Independence and objectivity; 
3. Proficiency and due professional care; 
4. Quality assurance and improvement program; 

 
The Charter also has two annexes containing a Glossary of Terms and the Code of 
Ethics. 
 

3.8 The roles of the Audit Committee in relation to internal audit are to: 

 Oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism; 

 Support the effectiveness of the internal audit process and; 

 Promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework 
 
3.9 One of the key roles which demonstrate the Audit Committee’s oversight is the 

approval of the Internal Audit Charter.   
 
 

4.0 FINDINGS 
 

4.1 The PSIAS requires the Head of Internal Audit to review the charter periodically but 
final approval resides with the Audit Committee.  

4.2 The Regional Internal Audit Shared Service Charter for 2021/22 is attached at 
Appendix A.  The Charter was fully reviewed and amended for 2020/21 to have a 
consistent Charter for the four Councils which is consistent with the objectives of the 
Regional Shared Service, that is, to eliminate duplication and apply best practice.  

4.3   It has been reviewed again for 2021/22 to ensure it continues to reflect the 
requirements of the PSIAS and is applicable to all four Councils involved in the 
Shared Service. The only changes made relate to the change of title of the Audit 
Committee to the Governance and Audit Committee during 2021 as a result of the 
Local Government & Elections(Wales) Act.  

 
 
 

Page 82



 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1 An effective Internal Audit Service is a key contributor in ensuring that the Council’s 

assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded. There are no 
direct financial implications as a result of this report 

 
 
 
MARK THOMAS 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT 
SERVICE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards  

 

April 2017 
 

Internal Audit Office 
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



1  

APPENDIX A  

  

DRAFT   

  

    Internal Audit Charter 2021/22  
  

  

Bridgend County Borough Council  

  

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council  

  

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council   

  

Vale of Glamorgan Council  

 
  

 

March 2021 

  

Page 85



2  

  

Review and Approval of the Internal Audit Charter  

This Internal Audit Charter defines the purpose, authority and responsibility of the 

Internal Audit Service.  

The Internal Audit Charter is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

as follows:  

The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the purpose, authority and 

responsibility of Internal Audit activities. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal  

Audit’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records, personnel and 

physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the 

scope of Internal Audit activities.  

A professional, independent and objective Internal Audit Service is one of the key 

elements of good governance, as recognised throughout the UK Public Sector.  

The purpose of this Regional Internal Audit Shared Service Charter is to define the 

purpose, authority and responsibilities of the Regional Internal Audit Shared Service 

(RIASS) across Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of 

Glamorgan Councils.    

The Charter establishes the position of internal audit activity within each Council along 

with reporting lines, authorising access to records, personnel and physical property 

relevant to the performance of audit work and defines the scope of internal audit 

activities.    

The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the charter and presenting it to 

each Council’s Governance & Audit Committee annually for review and approval.  

 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards sets out the Mission of Internal Audit (what 
internal audit aspires to accomplish within an organisation) and the definition of Internal 
Auditing.  
  

Mission of Internal Audit  

To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective 

assurance, advice and insight.  

 
 

 
  

Page 86



3  

Definition of Internal Auditing          
  

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 

approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes.  

  

A. In each of the four Councils, the role of the Board, as defined within the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards, will be the responsibility of each Council’s 

Governance & Audit Committee and any reference made throughout this 

document relating to the Governance & Audit Committee assumes the 

responsibilities of the Board as defined and referred to within the Standards.  

 

B. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the internal audit charter 

defines the terms Board, Chief Audit Executive and Senior Management in 

relation to the work of internal audit.  For the purposes of internal audit work the 

roles are defined as follows:  

• Board – The internal audit activity is established and defined by the 

Board, (hereafter referred to as the Governance & Audit Committee) 

which has responsibility for overseeing the work of Internal Audit.    

  

• Chief Audit Executive – The role of the Chief Audit Executive is 

undertaken by the Head of the Audit Service.  

  

• Senior Management – Senior Management is defined as those officers 

designated as Chief Officers as set out in each Council’s Constitution.  

  

C. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards became effective from the 1st of 

April 2013 and were updated in March 2017. The Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 

Government in the United Kingdom 2006. Conformance with the Standards, the 

Definition of Internal Auditing and Code of Ethics is mandatory.  

The RIASS is committed to meeting the standards laid down in the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards Framework and any significant deviations from 

the Standards will be reported to the Governance & Audit Committee.   

  

 

 

 

Page 87



4  

D. The Charter is split into the following sections;  

1. Purpose, Authority and Responsibility;  

2. Independence and objectivity;  

3. Proficiency and due professional care;  

4. Quality assurance and improvement programme.  

  

1.  Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (Standard 1000)  

  

1.1 Internal Audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent 

and objective opinion to management and Members on the control environment 

comprising risk management, internal control and governance by evaluating its 

effectiveness in achieving the Council’s objectives.  

  

1.2 It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control 

environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective 

use of resources.    

  

1.3 It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 

disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance issues.  

  

1.4 In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:  

  

• Support the Chief Finance Officer in each Council to discharge their 

Section 151 duties;  

• Contribute to and support the organisation with the objective of ensuring 

the provision of, and promoting the need for, sound financial systems;   

• Investigate allegations of fraud or irregularity to help safeguard public 

funds in consultation with relevant Council Services;  

• Support the work of the relevant Governance & Audit Committees; and  

• Provide an annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk 

management and control.   

  

1.5 These objectives will be delivered through maintaining a high quality RIASS 

function that meets the needs of each Council, supporting the relevant Section 

151 Officers and the Governance & Audit Committees in discharging their 

responsibilities and meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards.   

  

1.6 Internal Audit is a statutory service. Part 3 of The Accounts and Audit (Wales)            

Regulations 2018 concerns financial management and internal control. 

Regulation 5 (responsibility for internal control and financial management) of 

Part 3 directs that:  

 

Page 88



5  

‘The relevant body must ensure that there is a sound system of internal control 
which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which 
includes:  

Arrangements for the management of risk, and (b) 
Adequate and effective financial management.’  

 

1.7 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 directs that: 

  

‘A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.’  

  

1.8 The work of Internal Audit forms part of the assurance framework, however, the 

existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management 

to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted 

in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner.  

  

1.9 Section 151 of the Local Government Finance Act 1972 requires every local 

authority to designate an officer to be responsible for the proper administration 

of its financial affairs.  In each Council it is the Chief Finance Officer/Head of 

Finance/Director of Finance or equivalent. 

 

Scope   

1.10 The scope for Internal Audit work includes the control environment comprising 

risk management, control and governance.  

  

1.11 This effectively means that Internal Audit has the remit to independently review 

all the Council’s operations, resources, services and processes in place to:  

  

• Establish and monitor the achievement of Council objectives;  

• Identify, assess and manage the risks to achieving the Council’s 

objectives;  

• Facilitate policy and decision making;  

• Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources;  

• Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 

regulations;  

• Safeguard assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including 

those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption; and  

• Ensure the integrity and reliability of information, accounts and data, 

including internal and external reporting. 

  

 

 1.12 All the Council’s activities, funded from whatever source, and indeed the entire 

control environment fall within the remit of Internal Audit.  

 

1.13 Internal Audit will consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure 

propriety, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to 

Page 89



6  

confirm that management have taken all necessary steps to achieve these 

objectives.   

 

1.14 The scope of Internal Audit work should cover all operational and management 

controls and should not be restricted to the audit of systems and controls 

necessary to form an opinion on the financial statements. This does not imply 

that all systems will necessarily be reviewed, but that all will be included in the 

audit needs assessment and hence considered for review following the 

assessment of risk. The Internal Audit activity is free from interference in 

determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work and communicating 

results.    

 

1.15 It is not the remit of Internal Audit to challenge the appropriateness of Policy 

decisions. However, Internal Audit is required to examine the management 

arrangements of the Council by which such decisions are made, monitored and 

reviewed.  

  

1.16 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provide the following definitions for 

assurance and consultancy work:  

  

• Assurance Services  

An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an 

independent assessment on governance, risk management and 

internal control for the organisation. Examples may include financial, 

performance, compliance, system security and due diligence 

engagements. This work will usually result in an opinion being 

provided. (These Services may also be provided to other parties and 

organisations).   

  

• Consulting Services   

Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of 

which are agreed with the client, are intended to add value and improve 

an organisation’s governance, risk management and internal control 

without the Internal Auditor assuming management responsibility. 

Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training. The nature 

of Consulting Services provided includes acting as a ‘critical friend’ on 

Project Boards. This work will not normally result in an opinion being 

provided. (These Services may also be provided to other parties and 

organisations).  

  

1.17 The core aim of the work undertaken is to establish a risk based annual 

Internal Audit Plan that is balanced and covers the control environment of the 

Council as far as is practicable. In order to undertake a balanced workload, 

Internal Audit plans to complete a mix of assurance and consultancy work, the 

outcomes of which contribute to the Internal Audit Annual Report where it 

concludes with an opinion on the Council’s overall risk, governance and control 

environment.  The Head of Internal Audit should share information, coordinate 

Page 90



7  

activities and consider relying upon the work of other internal and external 

assurance and consulting service providers to ensure proper coverage and 

minimise duplication of efforts.  

 

1.18 In Internal Audit has right of access to all of the Council’s records, information 

and assets that it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities, including 

those of partner organisations. Internal Audit staff shall have unrestricted 

access to all Council activities and records (whether manual or computerised 

systems), personnel, cash, stores, other assets and premises, including those 

of partner organisations and have authority to obtain such information and 

explanations as considered necessary to fulfil Internal Audit’s responsibilities.  

 

  Rights of Access  

  

1.19 All staff are required to give complete co-operation to Internal Audit staff to 

enable the undertaking of an audit.   

  

1.20 All partners/agents contracted to provide services on the Council’s behalf are 

also required to co-operate with Internal Audit staff and make available all 

necessary information.  Rights of access to other bodies funded by the Council 

should be set out in conditions of funding or contract documents.  

2.  Independence and Objectivity (Standard 1100)  

  

2.1 The main determinant of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is that it is seen to 

be independent and that Internal Auditors must be objective in performing their 

work. To ensure this, Internal Audit operates within a framework that allows:  

  

• The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chief Executive/ 

Managing Director, the Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer;  

• Unrestricted access to Directors, Heads of Service, Managers and Staff;  

• Unrestricted access to Members (including the Leader, Cabinet Members 

and Governance & Audit Committee);  

• Unrestricted access to Audit Wales (i.e. the Council’s External Auditor);   

• Reporting in its own name; and   

• Internal Audit is free from interference when determining the scope of audit 

reviews, performing the work and communicating the results.  

  

  

2.2 This is achieved through a reporting relationship in each Council as shown in 

Figure 1 below:  

 

  

Page 91



8  

 

Figure 1 – Internal Audit reporting arrangements  

  

 

Section 151 Officer  

2.3 The Section 151 Officer has overall responsibility for the proper administration of 

the Council’s financial affairs. Internal Audit assists the Officer by providing an 

opinion on the overall control environment and by regular assurance testing of 

the key financial systems.  

  

Governance & Audit Committee  

2.4 The Council operates a Governance & Audit Committee that meets on a cyclical 

basis. It monitors the performance of Internal Audit in relation to productivity, 

efficiency and quality. It receives regular reports from Internal Audit including 

progress in delivering the Annual Audit Plan and is attended by the Head of 

Internal Audit1 as well as Officers from the Council.  

  

2.5 In addition, the Governance & Audit Committee receives the Internal Audit 

Annual Report that provides a summary of all assurance and consultancy work 

undertaken and concludes by giving an opinion on the overall control 

environment within the Council.  If a qualified or unfavourable annual internal 

audit opinion is issued, the reasons to support this will be stated within the 

Internal Audit Annual Report.  

  

2.6 The Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance 

& Audit Committee.   

  

                                            
1 Head of Internal Audit – denotes the Head of the Regional Internal Audit Shared Service   

  

  

  

Head of Internal  
Audit   

Head of Paid Service   

Section 151 Officer   

Audit Committee &  
Members   

Page 92



9  

Senior Management  

2.7 Each Council is divided into various Services and it is the role of the Chief 

Executive/Managing Director and each Director, Head of Service or equivalent 

to ensure delivery and operation of the service areas falling within their remit.  

Relationships with key stakeholders and Service Managers  

2.8 The Internal Audit Service develops constructive working relationships with 

Managers at all levels within the Council in terms of:  

• Planning work;   

• Carrying out audit assignments; and   

• Agreeing action plans arising from the work undertaken.  

2.9 Whilst maintaining its independence, the Internal Audit Service recognises that 

it must work with Managers to agree improvements that are deemed necessary.  

  

External Auditors  

2.10 The aim of the relationship between internal and external auditors is to achieve 

mutual recognition and respect, leading to a joint improvement in performance 

and to avoid, wherever possible, duplication of work.  

  

2.11 The Head of Internal Audit liaises regularly with Audit Wales to consult on audit 

plans, discuss matters of mutual interest and to seek opportunities for co-

operation in the conduct of audit work.  

  

Elected Members  

2.12 The Head of Internal Audit will aim to have sound working relationships and 

channels of communication with Elected Members and in particular, 

Governance & Audit Committee, Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees.  

  

Internal Audit Standards  

2.13 There is a statutory requirement for Internal Audit to work in accordance with 

the “proper audit practices”.  These are set out in the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards (PSIAS) which the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) developed in collaboration with the Chartered Institute of 

Internal Auditors (CIIA) and which came into force on the 1st April 2013 and 

updated in March 2017.  

  

2.14 Internal Audit Staff will; 

 

• Comply with relevant auditing standards;  

• Comply and promote compliance throughout the Council with all Council 

rules and policies;  

• Be expected at all times to adopt a professional, reliable, independent 

and innovative approach to their work; and  

Page 93



10  

• It is essential that Internal Audit staff are seen to be impartial.  All Internal 

Audit staff are required to complete an annual declaration of their 

interests and must be kept up to date.  This is reviewed as part of the 

annual appraisal and is in line with professional ethics.  The Head of 

Internal Audit is responsible for ensuring that audit staff are not assigned 

to operational areas or investigations that could compromise their 

independence (including previous and / or secondary employment 

elsewhere in the relevant Council or organisation being audited).  

 

 

2.15 The RIASS has adopted the CIIA’s Code of Ethics.  Where members of the 

RIASS have attained membership with other professional bodies such as: 

CIPFA or the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 

(ICAEW), those officers must also comply with their relevant bodies’ ethical 

requirements.   

 

2.16 Each member of the Team will receive a copy of the Code of Ethics (included 

at Annex 2) and sign up to an annual declaration to confirm that they will work 

in compliance with the Code of Ethics as well as Councils standards and 

policies such as the Codes of Conduct.  Where potential areas of conflict may 

arise during the year, the auditor will also be required to disclose this.  It is 

critical that all Auditors maintain high standards of integrity, independence, 

objectivity, confidentiality and competence.    

 

Shared Service  

2.17 Internal Audit is delivered through a shared regional service between Bridgend, 

Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of Glamorgan Councils.  The 

host authority for the delivery of the RIASS is the Vale of Glamorgan Council. 

The governance of the provision of the shared regional service is carried out by 

the Regional Board.  This is made up of the Chief Financial Officers of each 

Authority or their nominated substitutes who shall be responsible for the 

strategic direction of the Service.  

  

2.18 The activities of the Regional Board shall include but not be limited to:  

• determining the strategic direction of the RIASS;  

• monitoring and reviewing standards;  

• determining the Authority Charging Rate on the basis of reasonable 

information provided by the Head of Internal Audit;  

• providing general supervision of the provision of the Service; and,  

• Resolving conflicts between competing interests amongst the authorities 

collectively and individually relating to RIASS, the Regional Board and / or 

the Service.  

  

2.19 The Governance & Audit Committee for each Council reviews the performance 

and effectiveness of audit activity, including that of the RIASS.  

Page 94



11  

 

3.  Proficiency and Due Professional Care (standard 1200)  

  

3.1 Directors, Heads of Service and Service Managers are responsible for ensuring 

that internal control arrangements are sufficient to address the risks facing their 

Service including the risk of fraud and corruption.  

  

3.2 The Head of Internal Audit is required to manage the provision of a RIASS to 

each Council which will include reviewing the systems of internal control 

operating throughout each Council, and will adopt a combination of system 

based, risk based, regularity, computer and contract audit approaches in addition 

to the investigation of fraud.  

  

3.3 In discharge of this duty, the Head of Internal Audit will:  

  

• Prepare an annual strategic risk based audit plan for approval and 

ratification by the relevant  Governance & Audit Committee; and  

  

• The Annual Audit Plan will be regarded as flexible and may be revised to 

reflect changing services and risk assessments; elements of the annual 

plan are also based on items within Corporate or Strategic Risk Registers.  

  

Resources and Proficiency  

  

3.4 For the RIASS to fulfil its responsibilities, the service must be appropriately 

staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications, skills and experience.  

Resources must be effectively developed and deployed to achieve the 

approved risk-based plan.  The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for 

ensuring that there is access to the full range of knowledge, skills, qualifications 

and experience to deliver the audit plan and meet the requirements of the 

PSIAS.  

  

3.5 The Head of Internal Audit must hold a full professional qualification, defined as 

CCAB, CMIIA or equivalent professional membership and adhere to 

professional values and the Code of Ethics. They must have sufficient skill, 

experience and competencies to work with Directors, Heads of Service, and 

other Managers and the Audit Committee to influence the risk management, 

governance and internal control of the Councils.  

  

3.6 Each job role within the RIASS structure details the prerequisite skills and 

competencies required for that role and these will be assessed annually in line 

with Council policy and the PSIAS.  Any development and training plans will be 

regularly reviewed, monitored and agreed with officers.  

  

3.7 All Auditors are also required to maintain a record of their continual professional 

development in line with their professional body.  

Page 95



12  

  

  

Due Professional Care  

  

3.8  Internal Auditors must exercise due professional care by considering the:  

  

• Extent of work needed to achieve the assignment objectives;  

• Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters to which 

assurance procedures are applied;  

• Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and  

control processes;  

• Probability of significant error, fraud, or non-compliance;   

• Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits; and  

• Considering various data analysis techniques and being alert to 

significant risks that may affect the objectives.  

  

Relationships  

  

3.9 All stakeholders will be treated with respect, courtesy, politeness and 

professionalism.  Any confidential or sensitive issues raised with or reported to 

Internal Audit staff will be dealt with in an appropriate manner.  

  

Internal – Our main contacts are with:  

• Elected Members;  

• Chief Officers (as defined in the Council’s Constitution)  

• Corporate Directors and Section 151 Officers  

• Heads of Service and Headteachers;  

• Group Managers / Operational Managers and line supervisors;  

• Front line employees delivering services to the public; and  

• Back office support staff, in particular Financial Services, Legal Services, 

ICT and HR.  

   

External – Our main contacts are with:  

• The Council’s External Auditors.  

Internal and External Audit work together to ensure audit resources are 

used to best advantage for the benefit of the Council.  The External 

Auditors have regard to the work performed by Internal Audit when 

undertaking their final accounts audit.  

• Various Government Agencies and Inspectorates.  

  

4.  Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (Standard 1300)  

  

4.1 To enable the Head of Internal Audit to assess the RIASS’s activities with 

conformance to the PSIAS and to aid in the annual assessment of the RIASS’s 

efficiency and effectiveness and identify opportunities for improvement, a 

Page 96



13  

Quality Improvement and Management Programme (QIMP) has been 

developed.  

  

4.2 The QIMP includes both internal and external assessments in accordance with 

the Standards.  

  

4.3 Assessment against QIMP forms part of the annual assessment of the 

effectiveness of internal audit (as contained within the Head of Internal Audit’s 

Annual Opinion Report) which is presented to the relevant Governance & Audit 

Committee.   

  

4.4 Where there are instances of non-conformance to the PSIAS this will be 

reported to the Governance & Audit Committee and the Regional Board with 

any significant deviations being detailed within the Annual Governance 

Statement.  

  

Internal Assessment  

  

4.5 All Auditors have access to up to date business processes, working instructions, 

the Internal Audit Charter, Council policies, the PSIAS, journals, publications 

and other relevant articles and electronic training material and websites.  Where 

staff are members of bodies such as CIPFA and/or CIIA further guidance is 

available.  

  

4.6 To maintain quality, work is allocated to staff with appropriate skills, competence 

and experience.  All levels of staff are supervised.  Work is monitored for 

progress, assessed for quality and to allow for coaching and mentoring.  

  

4.7 Targets are set for individual auditors (such as completion of an audit within a 

set number of days) as well as for the team. Audit targets and performance 

indicators will be agreed with the Regional Board and reported to the relevant 

Audit Committee.  

  

4.8 In addition to the QIMP, progress made against the annual audit plan and any 

emerging issues (i.e. fraud risks or governance issues) are reported regularly 

to the relevant Audit Committee.  

  

4.9 Ongoing assessment of individuals is carried out through regular on-going 

reviews, one to one meetings, feedback from clients via the Client Satisfaction 

Surveys and formally in the annual personal development review process.  

  

   

External Assessment  

  

4.10 In compliance with the PSIAS, external assessment will be carried out once 

every five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from 

outside of the RIASS Councils.  The External Assessment of the previous 

Page 97



14  

Shared Service between Bridgend CBC and the Vale of Glamorgan Council 

took place during in 2017 and in the other respective Councils in 2018/19. The 

next external assessment will take place in 2022.  

  

  

  

  

Page 98



15  

 

Annex 1 - Glossary of Terms  

Charter  

The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines the internal audit activity’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The internal audit charter establishes the internal 

audit activity’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records, 

personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and 

defines the scope of internal audit activities.  

  

Chief Audit Executive  

Chief audit executive describes the role of a person in a senior position responsible for 

effectively managing the internal audit activity in accordance with the internal audit 

charter and the mandatory elements of the International Professional Practices 

Framework. The chief audit executive or others reporting to the chief audit executive 

will have appropriate professional certifications and qualifications. The specific job title 

and/or responsibilities of the chief audit executive may vary across organisations. In 

the context of the RIASS this is the Head of Internal Audit.  

  

Code of Ethics  

The Code of Ethics of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) are Principles 

relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing and Rules of Conduct that 

describe behaviour expected of internal auditors. The Code of Ethics applies to both 

parties and entities that provide internal audit services.  

The purpose of the Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical culture in the global 

profession of internal auditing.  

  

Compliance  

Adherence to policies, plans, procedures, laws, regulations, contracts, or other 

requirements.  

  

Conflict of Interest  

Any relationship that is, or appears to be, not in the best interest of the organisation. A 

conflict of interest would prejudice an individual’s ability to perform his or her duties 

and responsibilities objectively.  

  

Control  

Any action taken by management, the board and other parties to manage risk and 

increase the likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved. 

Management plans, organises and directs the performance of sufficient actions to 

provide reasonable assurance that objectives and goals will be achieved.  

  

Control Environment    

The control environment provides the discipline and structure for the achievement of 

the primary objectives of the system of internal control. The control environment 

includes the following elements:  

• Integrity and ethical values;  

Page 99



16  

• Management’s philosophy and operating style;  

• Organisational structure;  

• Assignment of authority and responsibility;  

• Human resource policies and practices; and   

• Competence of personnel.  

  

Fraud  

Any illegal act characterised by deceit, concealment or violation of trust. These acts 

are not dependent upon the threat of violence or physical force. Frauds are perpetrated 

by parties and organisations to obtain money, property or services; to avoid payment 

or loss of services; or to secure personal or business advantage.  

  

Governance  

The combination of processes and structures implemented by the board to inform, 

direct, manage and monitor the activities of the organisation toward the achievement 

of its objectives.  

Public sector definition: Governance Statement  

The mechanism by which an organisation publicly reports on its governance 
arrangements each year.  

  

Independence  

The freedom from conditions that threaten the ability of the internal audit activity to 

carry out internal audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner.  

  

Internal Auditing  

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach 

to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 

governance processes.  

  

Overall Opinion  

The rating, conclusion and/or other description of results provided by the chief audit 

executive addressing, at a broad level, governance, risk management and/or control 

processes of the organisation. An overall opinion is the professional judgement of the 

chief audit executive based on the results of a number of individual engagements and 

other activities for a specific time interval.  

  

Risk  

The possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of 

objectives. Risk is measured in terms of impact and likelihood.  

  

Risk Appetite  

The level of risk that an organisation is willing to accept.  

  

Page 100



17  

Risk Management  

A process to identify, assess, manage and control potential events or situations to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the organisation’s 

objectives.  

  

Page 101



18  

  

Annex 2 - Code of Ethics   

Public sector requirement  

Internal Auditors in UK public sector organisations (as set out in the Applicability 

Section) must conform to the Code of Ethics as set out below. If individual Internal 

Auditors have membership of another professional body then he or she must also 

comply with the relevant requirements of that body. The Code of Ethics promote an 

ethical and professional culture.  It does not supersede or replace Internal Auditors’ 

own professional bodies Code of Ethics or those of employing organisations.   

  

The purpose of The Institute of Internal Auditor’s Code of Ethics is to promote an 

ethical culture in the profession of Internal Auditing. A Code of Ethics is necessary and 

appropriate for the profession of Internal Auditing, founded as it is on the trust placed 

in its objective assurance about risk management, control and governance.   

  

The Institute’s Code of Ethics extends beyond the definition of Internal Auditing to 

include two essential components:  

  

Components  

1. Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of Internal Auditing; and   

2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of Internal Auditors.   

  

These rules are an aid to interpreting the Principles into practical applications and are 

intended to guide the ethical conduct of Internal Auditors.  

  

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to Internal Auditors serving others. ‘Internal 

Auditors’ refers to Institute members and those who provide Internal Auditing services 

within the definition of Internal Auditing.  

  

Applicability and Enforcement  

This Code of Ethics applies to both individuals and entities that provide Internal 

Auditing services. For Institute members, breaches of the Code of Ethics will be 

evaluated and administered according to The Institute’s Disciplinary Procedures. The 

fact that a particular conduct is not mentioned in the Rules of Conduct does not prevent 

it from being unacceptable or discreditable and therefore, the member liable to 

disciplinary action.  

  

Public sector interpretation  

The ‘Institute’ here refers to the Institute of Internal Auditors. Disciplinary procedures 

of other professional bodies and employing organisations may apply to breaches of 

this Code of Ethics.   

  

Page 102



19  

    

1.  Integrity  

  

Principle  

The integrity of Internal Auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis 
for reliance on their judgement.  

  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

1.1  Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility.  

1.2   Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the 

profession.  

1.3   Shall not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity, or engage in acts that are  

           discreditable to the profession of Internal Auditing or to the organisation.  

1.4   Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the 

organisation.  

  

2.  Objectivity  

  

Principle  

Internal Auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 
evaluating and communicating information about the activity or process being 
examined.  
Internal Auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances 
and are not unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in forming 
judgements.  

  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

2.1 Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be 

presumed to impair their unbiased assessment. This participation includes 

those activities or relationships that may be in conflict with the interests of the 

organisation.  

2.2 Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their 

professional judgement.  

2.3 Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort 

the reporting of activities under review.  

  

3. Confidentiality  

Principle  

Internal Auditors respect the value and ownership of information they receive 
and do not disclose information without appropriate authority unless there is a 
legal or professional obligation to do so.  
  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

Page 103



20  

3.1 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course 

of their duties.  

3.2  Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be 
contrary to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the 
organisation.  

 
4.   Competency  

Principle   

Internal Auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the 
performance of Internal Auditing services.   

  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

4.1 Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary 

knowledge, skills and experience.  

4.2 Shall perform Internal Auditing services in accordance with the International 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.  

4.3 Shall continually improve their proficiency, effectiveness and quality of their 

services.  

Page 104



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

ISSUED INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Audit Committee of issued Internal Audit 

Reports.    
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 Members determine any reports they wish to consider in more detail at a future 

meeting including receiving updates from appropriate officers on progress made in 
implementing recommendations.   

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Audit Committee of issued Internal Audit 

Reports. These are listed in table 1 below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Written 12th April 2021 

Report Author Mark Thomas/Helen Harbord  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 19th April 2021 

Page 105

Agenda Item 6



Table 1 
 

Report Title Audit Opinion No. of 
Recommendations 

 

Ffos y Fran  N/A 1 

Treasury Management 2020/21 Good 2 

 
 
3.2 A copy of the Treasury Management report has been provided to Members.   
 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
MARK THOMAS 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT 
SERVICE 

 
COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 

CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 
AND CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
Various Internal Audit 
reports 

 
Various 

  
Internal Audit Service 

 
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  

No 

 

Page 106


	Agenda
	3 Annual Risk Management Progress Report and Updated Corporate Risk Register 2020-21
	Appendix 1

	4 Audit Wales - 2021 Audit Plan - Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
	2021 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
	About this document
	My duties
	Audit of financial statements
	Value for money
	Continuous improvement
	Sustainable development principle

	Impact of COVID-19
	Audit of financial statements
	Audit of financial statements risks

	Performance audit
	Certification of grant claims and returns
	Statutory audit functions
	Fee, audit team and timetable
	Fee
	Audit team
	Timetable



	5 Internal Audit Charter 2021/22
	Appendix 1

	6 Information Reports

